
 
 

Audit Committee 
 

 Wednesday, 22nd September, 
2010 
at 6.00 pm 

Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre 
 

This meeting is open to the public 
 

 Members 
 

 Councillor Ball (Chair) 
Councillor Bogle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Daunt 
Councillor Fuller 
Councillor Sollitt 
Councillor Letts 
Councillor Wells 
 

 Contacts 
 

 Democratic Support Officer:- 
Judy Cordell 
Tel. 023 8083 2766 
Email: judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk  

  

 Head of Service:- 
Rob Carr 
Acting Executive Director of Resources 
Tel. 023 8083 4370 
Email: Rob.carr@southampton.gov.uk  

 

Public Document Pack



 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 

Role of the Audit Committee Southampton City Council’s Six 
Priorities 

The Committee has responsibility for:- 

• providing an independent assurance to 
the Standards and Governance 
Committee on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the 
internal control and reporting 
environment including (but not limited 
to) the reliability of the financial 
reporting process and the statement of 
internal control; 

• satisfying and providing assurance to 
the Standards and Governance 
Committee that appropriate action is 
being taken on risk and internal control 
related issues identified by the internal 
and external auditors and other review 
and inspection bodies; and 

• specifically, the oversight of, and 
provision of assurance to the 
Standards and Governance Committee 
on, the following functions:- 

 
§ ensuring that Council assets are 

safeguarded; 
§ maintaining proper accounting 

records; 
§ ensuring the independence, 

objectivity and effectiveness of 
internal and external audit; 

§ the arrangements made for co-
operation between internal and 
external audit and other review 
bodies; 

§ considering the reports of internal and 
external audit and other review and 
inspection bodies; 

§ the scope and effectiveness of the 
internal control systems established 
by management to identify, assess, 
manage and monitor financial and 
non-financial risks (including 
measures to protect against, detect 
and respond to fraud). 

• Providing good value, high quality 
services 

• Getting the City working 

• Investing in education and training 

• Keeping people safe 

• Keeping the City clean and green 

• Looking after people 

 
Public Representations  
At the discretion of the Chair, members of 
the public may address the meeting about 
any report on the agenda for the meeting 
in which they have a relevant interest. 
 
Smoking policy – the Council operates a 
no-smoking policy in all civic buildings. 
 
Mobile Telephones – please turn off your 
mobile telephone whilst in the meeting. 
 
Fire Procedure – in the event of a fire or 
other emergency a continuous alarm will 
sound and you will be advised by Council 
officers what action to take. 
 
Access – access is available for disabled 
people. Please contact the Democratic 
Support Officer who will help to make any 
necessary arrangements. 
 
Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year 
2010/11  

2010 2011 

Wed 23 June Thurs 17 March 

Wed 22 Sept  

Tues 7 Dec  

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 
Terms of Reference  
 
The terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee are contained in Article 8 
and Part 3 (Schedule 2) of the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 

Business to be discussed 
 
Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this 
meeting. 

 

Rules of Procedure 
 
The meeting is governed by the Council 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of 
the Constitution. 

Quorum 
 
The minimum number of appointed 
Members required to be in attendance to 
hold the meeting is 3. 

 
Disclosure of Interests  
Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of 
Conduct, both the existence and nature of any “personal” or “prejudicial” interests 
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 
. 

Personal Interests 
 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a personal interest in any matter 
 
(i) if the matter relates to an interest in the Member’s register of interests; or 
(ii) if a decision upon a matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting to a 

greater extent than other Council Tax payers, ratepayers and inhabitants of 
the District, the wellbeing or financial position of himself or herself, a relative 
or a friend or:- 

 (a) any employment or business carried on by such person; 
 (b) any person who employs or has appointed such a person, any firm in 

which such a person is a partner, or any company of which such a 
person is a director; 

 (c)  any corporate body in which such a person has a beneficial interest in a 
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 
 

 (d) any body listed in Article 14(a) to (e) in which such a person holds a 
position of general control or management. 

 
A Member must disclose a personal interest. 
 
 
 
 

Continued/…… 
 

 



 

 
Prejudicial Interests 

Having identified a personal interest, a Member must consider whether a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably think that the interest was so 
significant and particular that it could prejudice that Member’s judgement of the public 
interest. If that is the case, the interest must be regarded as “prejudicial” and the Member 
must disclose the interest and withdraw from the meeting room during discussion on the 
item. 
 
It should be noted that a prejudicial interest may apply to part or the whole of an item. 
 
Where there are a series of inter-related financial or resource matters, with a limited 
resource available, under consideration a prejudicial interest in one matter relating to that 
resource may lead to a member being excluded from considering the other matters relating 
to that same limited resource. 
 
There are some limited exceptions.  
 
Note:  Members are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or his staff in 
Democratic Services if they have any problems or concerns in relation to the above. 

 

Principles of Decision Making 
 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
 

• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

• respect for human rights; 

• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

• setting out what options have been considered; 

• setting out reasons for the decision; and 

• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
 

• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  The 
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority 
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as 
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.  
Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are 
unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

Agendas and papers are now available via Southampton Online at  
www.southampton.gov.uk/council/meeting-papers  

 
 
1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 
 To note any changes in membership of the Committee made in accordance with 

Council Procedure Rule 4.3.  
  
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 In accordance with the Local Government Act 2000, and the Council's Code of 
Conduct adopted on 16th May 2007, Members to declare any personal or prejudicial 
interests in any matter included on the agenda for this meeting. 
 
NOTE: Members are required, where applicable, to complete the appropriate form 
recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic Support Officer 
prior to the commencement of this meeting.  
  
 

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  
 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd June 
2010, and to deal with any matters arising, attached.   
  
 

4 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  
 

5 AUDIT COMMISSION: AUDIT AND INSPECTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT  
 

 Report of the Chief Internal Auditor concerning an update on progress against the 
Audit and Inspection Plans, together with reports issued, attached.  
 

6 STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  
 

 Report of the Executive Director of Resources (Acting) detailing the Strategic Risk 
Register for comment and consideration, attached.  
 

7 TRIENNIAL REVIEW OF SELF INSURANCE FUND  
 

 Report of the Executive Director of Resources (Acting) detailing the review of the Self 
Insurance Fund, attached.  
 

8 AUDIT COMMISSION: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2009/10  
 

 Report of the Chief Internal Auditor requesting that the Committee notes the Audit 



 

Commission’s draft Annual Governance report for 2009/10, attached.  
 

9 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - CONFIDENTIAL PAPERS INCLUDED 
IN THE FOLLOWING ITEM  
 

 To move that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the Access to 
Information procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration of the confidential appendix 
2 to item no 10. 
 
Confidential appendix 2 contains information deemed to be exempt from general 
publication based on Categories 2 and 7 of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules.  The information contained therein is exempt as it relates 
to ongoing investigations and is likely to reveal the identities of individuals.  Having 
applied the public interest test it is not appropriate to disclose this information.  The 
interests of any parties involved in these investigations could be jeopardised by the 
release of the information.  
 

10 INTERNAL AUDIT: STATUS OF WORK AUGUST 2010  
 

 Report of the Chief Internal Auditor requesting that the Committee notes the Internal 
Audit Status of Work report for the period ending 10th August 2010, attached. 
 
NOTE:  There is a confidential appendix that is not for general publication.  
 

Tuesday, 14 September 2010 SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL 
 



 

- 1 - 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 JUNE 2010 
 

 

Present: 
Councillors Ball, Bogle, Daunt, Sollitt, Wells and Parnell 
 
Apologies 

Councillors Fuller and Letts 
 
Also in attendance: 

Mike Bowers, Audit Commission  
Kate Handy, District Audit  
 
 

1. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP 

 

Apologies were received from Councillor Fuller.  The Panel noted that in accordance 
with the provisions of Procedure Rules 4.3 and 4.4 Councillor Parnell replaced 
Councillor Fuller, for the purposes of this meeting. 
 

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED that Councillor Bogle be appointed as Vice-Chair for the 2010/11 
Municipal Year. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 18th March 2010 be approved and 
signed as a correct record. (Copy of the minutes circulated with the agenda and 
appended to the signed minutes). 
 

4. STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  

 
The Chair stated that Carolyn Williamson was leaving the Council and thanked her for 
all her hard work and that she had made an immense difference to the Committee.   
 

5. CHAIR’S ANNUAL REPORT ON AUDIT COMMITTEE 2009/10  

 
The Committee received and noted the report of the Chair of the Audit Committee 
2009/10 detailing the Chair’s Annual report.  (Copy of the report circulated with the 
agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 

6. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2009/10  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Resources seeking 
the Committee’s approval of the Statement of Accounts 2009/10.  (Copy of the report 
circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

RESOLVED that the Committee recommend to the Standards and Governance 
Committee that the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts be approved. 
 

7. AUDIT COMMISSION: AUDIT AND INSPECTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT  

 
The Committee received and noted the report of the Chief Internal Auditor updating the 
Committee on the progress of the Audit and Inspection Plan and the Audit Opinion 
Plan.  (Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed 
minutes). 
 

8. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

 
The Committee received and noted the report of the Chief Internal Auditor detailing the 
effectiveness of the system of internal audit.  (Copy of the report circulated with the 
agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 

9. CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2009/10  

 
The Committee received and noted the report of the Chief Internal Auditor detailing the 
Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report and Opinion for 2009/10.  (Copy of the report 
circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 

10. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2009-10  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Resources 
requesting that the Committee review and approves the draft Annual Governance 
Statement and recommends its acceptance to the Standards and Governance 
Committee prior to signing.  (Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and 
appended to the signed minutes). 
 
RESOLVED that the draft Annual Governance Statement 2009-10 be approved and 
recommended to the Standards and Governance Committee for approval. 
 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN AND REVIEW OF STRATEGY  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Resources 
requesting that the Committee notes and approves the Risk Management Action Plan 
for 2010/11 and notes the Risk Management Action Plan 2009-10: Status Report .  
(Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
RESOLVED  
 

(i) that the Risk Management Action Plan for 2010-11 be approved; 
(ii) that the Committee note the Risk Management Action Plan 2009-10: Status 

Report. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

- 3 - 
 

12. AUDIT COMMISSION: ANNUAL AUDIT FEE 2010/11  

 
The Committee received and noted the Chief Internal Auditor’s report detailing the 
content of the Audit Commission’s Annual audit fee letters for 2010/11.  (Copy of the 
report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
 

13. INTERNAL AUDIT STATUS OF WORK  

 
The Committee received and noted the report of the Chief Internal Auditor providing a 
written status report to the Audit Committee for the period ending 20th May 2010.  (Copy 
of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  AUDIT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: AUDIT COMMISSION: AUDIT AND INSPECTION 
PROGRESS REPORT 

DATE OF DECISION: 22 SEPTEMBER 2010 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR  

AUTHOR: Name:  Neil Pitman Tel: 023 8083 4616 

 E-mail: Neil.pitman@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

SUMMARY 

The audit and inspection plan is based on the Audit Commission’s risk-based 
approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit Practice  
 

An update on progress against the Plan(s) is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Audit Committee notes the Audit Commission’s report as 
attached. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference require it to be satisfied and 
provide assurance to the Standards and Governance Committee that 
appropriate action is being taken on risk and internal control related issues 
identified by the external auditors.  Specifically, the Committee has 
responsibility for oversight of the reports of external audit. 

CONSULTATION 

2. The reports, as attached, have been discussed and agreed with the 
appropriate officers. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

3. None 

DETAIL 

4. The Audit Commission’s Progress report – September 2010 is attached for 
consideration in Appendix 1. 

The external auditor will be in attendance at the Committee meeting to 
answer any questions. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

5. None 

Revenue 

Agenda Item 5



 2

6. None 

Property 

7. None 

Other 

8. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

9. The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are 
set out in the Local Government Act 1999. 

Other Legal Implications:  

10. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

11. None 
 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Audit Commission: Progress report – September 2010 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: Internal Audit Office, North Block 
Basement, Civic Centre 

 E-mail: Neil.pitman@southampton.gov.uk 

FORWARD PLAN No:       n/a KEY DECISION? 

 n/a 

  

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: 

     n/a 
 

 



Progress
Report
Southampton City Council  

Audit 2009/10 & 2010/11 

September 2010 

Appendix 1



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

any third party.

Contents
Progress with 2009/10 audit and assessment 3

Progress with 2010/11 audit and assessment 6



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

3
 

  
S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

A
C

 k
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
A

u
d

it
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

A
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

K
a
te

  
H

a
n
d
y
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

9
 

2
4

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0

9
 

T
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
fe

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

t 
it
s
 2

4
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

0
9

 m
e

e
ti
n
g

. 

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 p

la
n

 w
a
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 a
t 
th

e
 2

3
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
1
0
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

A
re

a
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

L
in

d
a

 K
ry

w
a

ld
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

9
 

2
4

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0

9
 

T
h

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 a
n

d
 f
e
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
(O

A
) 

a
n
d

 A
re

a
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
(A

A
) 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n

 A
p
ri
l 
2

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
  

2
4

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0

9
. 

T
h
e
 O

A
 a

n
d
 A

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 w

e
re

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
9

 a
n

d
 a

 b
ri

e
fi
n

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 f
o

r 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 
2

0
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
0

. 



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
4

R
e

p
o

rt
 

A
C

 k
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
A

u
d

it
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

In
te

ri
m

 a
u
d
it
 

m
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 (
If
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
) 

M
ik

e
 B

o
w

e
rs

 
C

a
ro

ly
n

 
W

ill
ia

m
s
o

n
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 
N

/A
T

h
e

 p
re

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 

T
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
n

o
th

in
g

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 

to
 t
h
e
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

R
e
p
o

rt
 (

IS
A

2
6
0
) 

K
a
te

 H
a
n
d
y
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

T
h

is
 i
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d
a

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 o
p

in
io

n
 

K
a
te

 H
a
n
d
y
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

g
e
n

d
a

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

m
e

e
ti
n
g

 
o
f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

F
in

a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n

ts
 

m
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

(I
f 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
) 

M
ik

e
 B

o
w

e
rs

 
R

o
b

 C
a

rr
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

U
s
e

 o
f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

K
a
te

 H
a
n
d
y
 

B
ra

d
 R

o
y
n
o
n
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 
N

/A
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
th

e
 a

b
o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
C

A
A

 w
e
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 i
s
s
u
in

g
 s

c
o
re

s
 f
o

r 
U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
W

e
 

h
a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t
o
 

a
rr

iv
e

 a
t 
o

u
r 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 
A

n
y
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 L

e
tt
e
r.

  

B
u

ild
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

F
u
tu

re
 -

 o
v
e
rv

ie
w

  
 

J
a

n
e

 B
u

rn
s
 

C
liv

e
 W

e
b

s
te

r 
N

/A
N

/A
T

h
e

 g
o

v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 
h

a
s
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

5
 

  
S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

A
C

 k
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
A

u
d

it
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

  
T

im
 T

h
o
m

a
s
  

G
o

rd
o

n
 W

e
s
tl
e

y
 

N
ic

k
 J

o
h
n
s
o
n
 

U
p

d
a

te
s
 a

s
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 
2

5
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 
2

0
1

0
T

h
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

) 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

p
o
t 

c
h

e
c
k
s
 (

If
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
) 

M
ik

e
 B

o
w

e
rs

 
J
o

y
 W

ilm
o

t-
P

a
lm

e
r 

N
/A

N
/A

T
h

e
 D

Q
 s

p
o

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 o
u
r 

U
o
R

 w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
's

 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

C
e

rt
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
s

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

  
M

ik
e
 B

o
w

e
rs

 
C

a
ro

ly
n

 
W

ill
ia

m
s
o

n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

0
 

1
8

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 1

8
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

0
. 

In
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 

S
h
o
rt

 N
o
ti
c
e

 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

(P
ilo

t)
 –

L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

J
u

lie
 W

a
tt

s
 

N
ic

k
 M

u
rp

h
y
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
2

5
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 
2

0
1

0
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
.



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
6

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

A
C

 k
e

y
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 A
u

d
it

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

A
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

K
a
te

 H
a
n
d
y
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 
T

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
fe

e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

fo
r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
  
 

A
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 p
la

n
 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 a

n
d

 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

h
e

n
 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 f
o

r 
2
0

0
9

/1
0

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 
 

C
o

m
p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 A

re
a

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
L
in

d
 K

ry
w

a
ld

 
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 C

A
A

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
h

a
lt
e

d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t's
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
a
b
o
lis

h
 C

A
A

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 w

it
h
d

ra
w

n
 t
h

is
 p

la
n

. 



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and 
rescue services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for 
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services 
and make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local 
people.

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
audio, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  AUDIT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER   

DATE OF DECISION: 22 SEPTEMBER 2010  

REPORT OF: ROB CARR – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
RESOURCES (ACTING) 

AUTHOR: Name:  Peter Rogers Tel: 023 8083 2835 

 E-mail: peter.rogers@southampton.gov.uk  

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

SUMMARY 

The Strategic Risk Register and associated Risk Management Action Plans 
(“RMAPs”) are intended to capture the key strategic risks that may prevent or have a 
significant adverse affect on the achievement of the Council’s key objectives.   
 
Both the Strategic and individual Directorate Risk Registers are subject to a periodic 
review to ensure that they are aligned with key priorities and objectives and reflect the 
key risks to be managed.      

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Audit Committee is asked to:- 

 (i) 
 
 
 
(ii) 
 

Review the Strategic Risk Register and associated RMAPs 
(Appendices 1/2) and be satisfied that the document adequately 
reflects the key strategic risks facing the Council.  
  
Note the Summary of Directorate Risk Registers (Appendix 3) 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The report is presented to the Audit Committee in its capacity as the member 
body with responsibility for providing independent assurance to the 
Standards and Governance Committee on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the internal control and reporting environment.   

2. The Audit Committee is also responsible for providing assurance to the 
Standards and Governance Committee that appropriate action is being taken 
on risk and internal control related issues identified by the internal and 
external auditors and other review and inspection bodies. 

CONSULTATION 

3. 
 
 
 

The Strategic Risk Register has been developed in consultation with PCoT 
(Resources Board) who are responsible for co-ordinating risk management 
activities through the management of all key business risks and ensuring that 
risks are appropriately ‘owned’ and managed in accordance with good 

Agenda Item 6



 2

 
 
4. 

practice and the Council’s approach to corporate governance   
 
The Strategic Risk Register was also formally review by COMT on 31st 
August 2010.  COMT previously agreed that the Strategic Risk Register 
should be reviewed on a quarterly basis alternately by PCoT. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. No alternative options have been considered. 

DETAIL 

6. 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 
 
 
 
 
 
8. 
 
 
 
 
 
9. 
 
 
 
10. 
 
 
 

The risk registers are a central component in respect of the Council’s overall 
approach to managing risk and are the most effective means of sharing risk 
information.  Each identified risk has an associated RMAP which identifies 
the risk owner together with the actions required to ensure that the risk is at 
a level acceptable to the organisation.   
 
As the risks are of a strategic nature it is not anticipated that they will change 
significantly from year to year as they are based around the organisational 
values and priority themes of the council.  The content of the associated 
‘Management Action Plans’, including the risk scores, actions to manage risk 
etc are however expected to change to reflect the current circumstances. 
 
Directorate Risk Registers are reviewed and updated post completion of the 
annual business planning process to ensure that the risks are aligned with 
key priorities as appropriate.  Thereafter, the respective Directorate 
Management Teams are required to review and update their risk registers, 
via CorVu, on a quarterly basis.    
 
The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed and updated by PCoT to reflect 
the end of financial year position and subsequently reviewed by COMT on 
31st August 2010 to reflect the current position.  
 
The purpose of the periodic review process is to provide opportunity to 
identify any new or emerging risks, to review progress in respect of agreed 
actions and to seek assurance that key risks are being managed 
appropriately. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

11. None 

Revenue 

12. None 

Property 

13. No specific property implications have been identified in this report. 

Other 

14. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 



 3

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

15. The Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003 require the Council to adopt Good Governance arrangements in respect 
of the discharge of its functions. The above arrangements are intended to 
meet those responsibilities. 

Other Legal Implications:  

16. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

17. None 
 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Strategic Risk Register and associated Risk Management Action Plans (part 1) 

2. Strategic Risk Register and associated Risk Management Action Plans (part 2) 

3. Summary of Directorate Risk Registers 

 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: Internal Audit Office, North Block 
Basement, Civic Centre       

 E-mail: peter.rogers@southampton.gov.uk 

FORWARD PLAN No:  N/A KEY DECISION? 

 N/A 

  

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: 

NOT APPLICABLE 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - SEPTEMBER 2010

Risk 

No

Directorate Risk Category Risk Description Current 

Risk 

Score

L
ik
e
lih
o
o
d

Im
p
ac
t

Risk 

Status

1 Chief Executives Customer/Citizen The Council fails to identify and respond to the need for organisational change taking into account external and 

internal factors and fails to effectively drive organisational direction.
D2 Low Critical Open

2 Chief Executives Political The potential for frequency of changes in the political makeup of the Council present constraints in making 

medium / long term strategic decisions.
C3 Significant Significant Open

3 Chief Executives Political Members are not provided with sufficient, relevant, accurate, reliable and robust information upon which to 

base strategic decisions.
E3 Very Low Significant Open

4 Resources Economic The Council fails to take into account the likely workforce, industrial relations and skills retention issues that 

may arise as a result in reductions in public expenditure and as a consequence management and/or staff skills 

are inadequate to support and deliver agreed levels of services and/or there is a breach or failure to meet the 

requirments of new or existing legislation.

C2 Significant Critical Open

5 Chief Executives Professional/Managerial The Council does not have the management capacity to effectively co-ordinate and support delivery of a range 

of key strategic or transformational projects which are set out in the Council's Medium Term Service and 

Financial Plan, Corporate Improvement and other key documents.

C3 Significant Significant Open

6 Neighbourhoods Customer/Citizen A major incident or event occurs that significantly impairs the Council's ability to function or provide a service to 

customers.
B3 High Significant Open

7 Chief Executives Partnership/Contractual Key partnerships or key contracts may breakdown and/or fail to deliver service objectives. D3 Low Significant Open

8 Chief Executives Competitive Failure to focus on delivering service improvements and 'value for money' and not meeting our targets or those 

identified by external assessors.
D3 Low Significant Open

9 Chief Executives Economic Major city and city centre infrastructure developments or economic development plans and initiatives are 

adversely affected by economic, environmental or market conditions and/or are not delivered in accordance 

with stakeholder expectation.

B2 High Critical Open

10 Chief Executives Legislative The physical assets that the council is responsible for are not effectively managed or controlled B2 High Critical Open

11 Environment Environmental Insufficient progress on securing the capital investment required (within the Council and City)to develop and 

implement a comprehensive adaptation and action plan for managing and monitoring major weather and 

climate vulnerabilities - including the development of infrastructure such as flood defences, surface water 

drainage renewal and green infrastructure.

C3 Significant Significant Open

12 Environment Environmental Insufficient progress on the Council's delivery plans for the Carbon Reduction Commitment to reduce CO2 

levels sufficiently to avoid severe financial penalties from Central Government. Risk of potential loss of 

reputation for poor performance in our 'Use of Resources' assessment and LAA designated target (reference 

our CAA organisational judgement).

C3 Significant Significant Open

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

C
h
ie
f
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
1

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
B
ra
d
R
o
y
n
o
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
E
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
V
e
ry

L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
C
u
s
to
m
e
r/
C
it
iz
e
n

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
fa
ils

to
id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n
d
re
s
p
o
n
d
to

th
e
n
e
e
d
fo
r

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l
c
h
a
n
g
e
ta
k
in
g

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
e
x
te
rn
a
l
a
n
d

in
te
rn
a
l
fa
c
to
rs

a
n
d
fa
ils

to
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
d
ri
v
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
la
n
in

p
la
c
e

w
h
ic
h
p
ro
v
id
e
s
th
e
s
tr
a
te
g
ic

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk

w
it
h
in

w
h
ic
h
th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
c
h
a
n
g
e
a
n
d

a
d
a
p
t
to

m
e
e
t
th
e

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l,

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

S
ta
ff
S
u
rv
e
y
h
e
ld

a
n
n
u
a
lly

a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
,
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
te
a
m

b
ri
e
f
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
s
y
s
te
m

in
p
la
c
e
a
n
d

re
v
is
e
d
c
ro
s
s
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l
"y
o
u
r
v
ie
w
s

c
o
u
n
t"
s
c
h
e
m
e
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l.

2
0
1
0
S
ta
ff
S
u
rv
e
y
is

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
a
n
d

d
u
e
to

g
o
liv
e
o
n
2
6
th

A
u
g
2
0
1
0

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
8
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
.

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic

a
n
d
d
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
th
a
t
th
e
n
e
x
t
3

y
e
a
rs

w
ill
b
ri
n
g
(2
0
1
0
-2
0
1
3
)

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
k
e
y
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
,
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
o
r

s
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic

tr
e
n
d
s
-
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
is

c
o
lle

c
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
a
v
a
ri
e
ty

o
f
s
o
u
rc
e
s

in
c
lu
d
in
g
C
e
n
s
u
s
d
a
ta
,
O
ff
ic
e
fo
r
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
a
n
d
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
d
a
ta

fr
o
m

H
C
C

(l
a
tt
e
r
to

b
e
re
v
ie
w
e
d
)

R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
d
a
ta

p
ro
v
id
e
d
b
y

H
C
C

p
la
n
n
e
d
.

J
o
y

W
ilm

o
t-
P
a
lm

e
r

G
4
/4
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

a
n
d
v
a
lu
e
s
a
re

re
v
ie
w
e
d

p
e
ri
o
d
ic
a
lly

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e
y
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
re
fl
e
c
t
th
e

s
tr
a
te
g
ic

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
n
d

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
o
f
th
e

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

A
ra
n
g
e
o
f
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

a
n
d
c
it
y
w
id
e

tr
a
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
ro
je
c
ts

a
re

in
p
la
c
e

P
ro
je
c
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
(P

M
C
o
n
n
e
c
t)
h
a
s
n
o
w

b
e
e
n
im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
(w

e
f
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
0
)

a
n
d
C
O
M
T
h
a
s
a
s
k
e
d
fo
r
it
to

b
e

re
v
ie
w
e
d
a
ft
e
r
th
e
fi
rs
t
s
ix
m
o
n
th
s
o
f

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
.

R
o
b
e
rt
C
a
rr

G
P
ro
je
c
ts

d
e
liv
e
re
d
o
n
ti
m
e
,
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t
a
n
d
to

th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d

s
ta
n
d
a
rd

o
r
q
u
a
lit
y

8
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
2

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
M
a
rk

H
e
a
th

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
P
o
li
ti
c
a
l

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

T
h
e
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
fo
r
fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
o
f

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
in

th
e
p
o
lit
ic
a
l

m
a
k
e
u
p
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
p
re
s
e
n
t

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts

in
m
a
k
in
g
m
e
d
iu
m

/
lo
n
g
te
rm

s
tr
a
te
g
ic

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
.

M
e
m
b
e
rs

b
ri
e
fe
d
o
n

d
e
ta
ile

d
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

in
re
la
ti
o
n
to

L
G
P
IH

A
c
t
a
n
d

e
le
c
to
ra
l
c
y
c
le
,
to

fa
c
ili
ta
te

p
o
s
s
ib
le

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
o
n

re
v
is
e
d
e
le
c
to
ra
l
c
y
c
le
s
a
n
d

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

w
h
ic
h
c
o
u
ld

b
e
im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
in

2
0
1
1
.

R
e
p
o
rt
to

M
e
m
b
e
rs

o
n
d
e
ta
ils

a
n
d

o
p
ti
o
n
s
a
v
a
ila

b
le
.

R
e
p
o
rt
to

S
p
e
c
ia
l
C
o
u
n
c
il
m
e
e
ti
n
g
o
n

1
5
th

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
0

M
a
rk

H
e
a
th

G
M
e
e
ti
n
g
th
e
s
ta
tu
to
ry

d
e
a
d
lin

e
fo
r
la
w
fu
l
d
e
c
is
io
n

2
1
/6
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/5
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
3

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
B
ra
d
R
o
y
n
o
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
E
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
V
e
ry

L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
E
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
P
o
li
ti
c
a
l

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

W
o
rk

w
it
h

in
te
g
ri
ty
,

o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
a
n
d

h
o
n
e
s
ty

M
e
m
b
e
rs

a
re

n
o
t
p
ro
v
id
e
d

w
it
h
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t,
re
le
v
a
n
t,

a
c
c
u
ra
te
,
re
lia

b
le

a
n
d
ro
b
u
s
t

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
u
p
o
n
w
h
ic
h
to

b
a
s
e
s
tr
a
te
g
ic

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
.

C
o
u
n
c
il
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
a
n
d

c
o
rp
o
ra
te

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
in

p
la
c
e
!

in
c
lu
d
e
s
re
p
o
rt
te
m
p
la
te
s
,

re
p
o
rt
a
u
th
o
r
tr
a
in
in
g
,

d
e
le
g
a
te
d
d
e
c
is
io
n
n
o
ti
c
e
s
,

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
F
o
rw

a
rd

P
la
n

a
n
d
o
th
e
r
a
s
p
e
c
ts

o
f

o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
,
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty

a
n
d
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
,
b
o
th

re
q
u
ir
e
d
b
y
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
a
n
d

R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
F
o
rw

a
rd

P
la
n
a
n
d
o
ff
ic
e
r

tr
a
in
in
g
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
to

b
e
in
s
ti
g
a
te
d
to

re
s
p
o
n
d
to

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
fr
o
m

th
e
O
v
e
rv
ie
w

a
n
d
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

J
o
y

W
ilm

o
t-
P
a
lm

e
r

G
2
8
/6
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

1Appendix 2



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

u
n
iq
u
e
to

th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il.

G
ro
u
p
L
e
a
d
e
r
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s

C
ro
s
s
p
a
rt
y
M
e
m
b
e
r

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
a
s
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

fo
r

a
ll
s
tr
a
te
g
ic

is
s
u
e
s
.

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
y

s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

in
p
la
c
e
a
n
d

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
a
g
a
in
s
t

re
q
u
ir
e
d
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
is

a
k
e
y
p
a
rt
o
f
s
ta
ff
a
n
n
u
a
l

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
ra
in
in
g
p
ro
v
id
e
d
fo
r

C
a
b
in
e
t
m
e
m
b
e
rs

a
n
d

m
e
m
b
e
rs

o
f
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
p
a
n
e
l

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
th
e
d
e
c
is
io
n

m
a
k
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
a
n
d
o
th
e
r

c
o
re

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
h
a
s
fo
r
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
e

q
u
a
lit
y
o
f
d
a
ta

a
n
d
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
b
y
th
e
A
u
d
it

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
e
d
o
n
w
it
h
in

th
e

A
n
n
u
a
l
A
u
d
it
a
n
d
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
L
e
tt
e
r.

P
ro
g
re
s
s
th
e
a
g
re
e
d
a
c
ti
o
n
p
la
n

a
ri
s
in
g
fr
o
m

th
e
A
u
d
it
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n

re
v
ie
w
.

J
o
y

W
ilm

o
t-
P
a
lm

e
r

G
N
o
a
d
v
e
rs
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
fr
o
m

th
e

e
x
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs
.

7
/4
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
5

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
B
ra
d
R
o
y
n
o
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
4

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
M
a
rg

in
a
l

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
P
ro

fe
s
s
io
n
a
l/
M
a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
th
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
to

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te

a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
d
e
liv
e
ry

o
f
a
ra
n
g
e
o
f

k
e
y
s
tr
a
te
g
ic

o
r

tr
a
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
ro
je
c
ts

w
h
ic
h
a
re

s
e
t
o
u
t
in

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il"
s
M
e
d
iu
m

T
e
rm

S
e
rv
ic
e
a
n
d
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
P
la
n
,

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
la
n
a
n
d
o
th
e
r
k
e
y

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic

a
n
d
m
a
jo
r
c
a
p
it
a
l

p
ro
je
c
ts

in
c
lu
d
e
d
in

th
e

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
la
n
2
0
1
0
-1
3

A
n
n
u
a
l
S
tr
a
te
g
ic

P
la
n
n
in
g

b
y
C
O
M
T
to

a
p
p
ro
v
e
k
e
y

S
tr
a
te
g
ic

a
n
d

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
ro
je
c
ts
,

P
ro
g
re
s
s
is

m
o
n
it
o
re
d

th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il"
s

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

S
y
s
te
m

(C
o
rV

u
).

C
a
p
it
a
l
a
n
d
M
a
jo
r
P
ro
je
c
t

B
o
a
rd
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
s
e
t
u
p

P
M

C
o
n
n
e
c
t
im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
o
n
1
s
t
A
p
ri
l

2
0
1
0
.
A
ll
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
h
a
v
e
C
a
p
it
a
l

B
o
a
rd
s
a
n
d
e
a
c
h
B
o
a
rd

h
a
s
re
v
is
e
d

te
rm

s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
m
a
jo
r
it
e
m
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
in

th
e

#C
a
p
it
a
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
M
a
jo
r

P
ro
je
c
ts

A
u
d
it
"
re
p
o
rt
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
b
u
t
s
o
m
e
d
e
ta
ile

d
w
o
rk

re
m
a
in
s
to

b
e
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e

d
e
ta
ile

d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
.

R
o
b
e
rt
C
a
rr

G
P
ro
je
c
ts

d
e
liv
e
re
d
o
n
ti
m
e
,
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t
a
n
d
to

th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d

s
ta
n
d
a
rd

o
r
q
u
a
lit
y

1
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

w
it
h
in

e
a
c
h
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

a
n
d

m
e
e
t
re
g
u
la
rl
y
.

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

B
u
s
in
e
s
s

P
la
n
n
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
u
s
e
d
to

in
fo
rm

a
n
d
id
e
n
ti
fy

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

a
n
d
s
k
ill
s
to

d
e
liv
e
r
k
e
y

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
,
tr
a
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
a
l

a
n
d
o
th
e
r
m
a
jo
r
p
ro
je
c
ts
.

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
,
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
b
le

c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
w
it
h
th
e
n
e
w

p
ro
je
c
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

(P
M

C
o
n
n
e
c
t)

T
h
e
fi
rs
t
y
e
a
r
o
f
P
M

C
o
n
n
e
c
t
tr
a
in
in
g

h
a
s
b
e
e
n
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e

2
0
0
9
/1
0
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
,
a
n
d

th
e
fo
llo

w
in
g
y
e
a
rs

tr
a
in
in
g
is

d
u
e
to

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
in

O
c
to
b
e
r
2
0
1
0
.

A
ll
p
ro
je
c
ts
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
a
l

P
ro
je
c
ts

w
ill
b
e
ru
n
th
ro
u
g
h
P
M

C
o
n
n
e
c
t,
w
it
h
m
o
n
th
ly
h
ig
h
lig

h
t
re
p
o
rt
s

a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n
S
h
a
re
P
o
in
t.

R
o
b
e
rt
C
a
rr

G
1
3
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
7

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
B
ra
d
R
o
y
n
o
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
4

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
M
a
rg

in
a
l

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
/C

o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

K
e
y
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
o
r
k
e
y

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

C
o
d
e
a
n
d

K
e
y
S
ta
tu
to
ry

a
n
d
n
o
n
s
ta
tu
to
ry

R
e
v
ie
w
a
n
d
a
s
s
e
s
s
o
u
tp
u
t
a
n
d
id
e
n
ti
fy

M
a
rk

H
e
a
th

G
R
o
b
u
s
t
a
n
d
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t

7
/4
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

2



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

m
a
y
b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n

a
n
d
/o
r
fa
il
to

d
e
liv
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
.

T
o
o
lk
it
in

p
la
c
e
a
n
d
p
a
rt
o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
.

S
o
u
th
a
m
p
to
n
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r
in

p
o
s
t.

C
o
re

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
c
ri
ti
c
a
l
to

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s

a
g
e
n
d
a
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
,
R
a
n
g
e
o
f

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
w
it
h
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

to
m
o
n
it
o
r
m
u
tu
a
lly

a
g
re
e
d

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
,

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re

R
u
le
s

u
p
d
a
te
d
in

2
0
0
8
a
n
d
p
a
rt
o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
.

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
in

p
la
c
e
fo
r
a
ll

s
ta
tu
to
ry

ta
rg
e
ts
,

d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
ta
rg
e
ts

a
n
d

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
P
I'
s
.
P
ro
g
re
s
s

re
p
o
rt
to

th
e
S
P
D
e
liv
e
ry

B
o
a
rd
,
S
e
c
to
r
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
,

C
a
b
in
e
t
a
n
d
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
fo
r
a
ll

a
re
a
s
w
h
e
re

th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
is

th
e
le
a
d
p
a
rt
n
e
r.

R
a
n
g
e
o
f
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts

in
p
la
c
e
a
c
ro
s
s

a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
a
re
a
s
w
h
ic
h

e
n
a
b
le

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
to

ta
k
e

a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
o
f
e
x
is
ti
n
g

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
/a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts

w
it
h

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
th
e
re
b
y
a
llo

w
in
g

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
a
re

re
q
u
ir
e
d
to

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
a

s
e
lf
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
u
s
in
g
th
e
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

C
o
d
e
a
n
d
T
o
o
lk
it
.

/
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te

a
n
y
le
a
rn
in
g
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

a
s
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

a
re

in
p
la
c
e
fo
r
a
ll
k
e
y
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s

a
n
d
n
e
w
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
o
rk
in
g

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

to
b
e
p
la
c
e
d

p
ro
m
p
tl
y
a
n
d
a
v
o
id

th
e

n
e
e
d
to

in
s
ti
g
a
te

a
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
e
x
e
rc
is
e
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
/
D
iv
is
io
n
a
l

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re

R
u
le
s
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
a
n
d

is
s
u
e
d
in

M
a
y
2
0
0
8
a
n
d
fo
rm

p
a
rt
o
f
th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
.
E
x
e
rc
is
e

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
to

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te

th
e
n
e
w

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

w
h
ic
h
a
re

a
v
a
ila

b
le

to
a
ll

v
ia

th
e
in
tr
a
n
e
t.

T
h
e
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
R
u
le
s
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n
s
e
n
t
to

a
ll
L
e
v
e
l
1
a
n
d
2
"s
,

p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
in

th
e
w
e
e
k
ly
b
u
lle

ti
n
,
a
n
d

c
o
v
e
re
d
in

th
e
d
a
y
o
n
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g

h
e
ld

a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
Y
e
a
r
3
2

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.

J
o
h
n
S
p
ie
rs

G
8
/1
/2
0
1
1

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y

P
la
n
n
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
re
q
u
ir
e
s

a
c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry

o
n
w
h
e
th
e
r
a

s
u
p
p
lie

r
h
a
s
a
"B

C
P
"
in

p
la
c
e
.

A
n
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
a
g
re
e
d
w
it
h
th
e

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
P
la
n
n
in
g
a
n
d
B
u
s
in
e
s
s

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
o
n
th
e
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
o
f
a

k
e
y
s
u
p
p
lie

r
a
n
d
th
e
a
c
ti
o
n
s
to

b
e
ta
k
e
n

w
it
h
th
o
s
e
k
e
y
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
.

J
o
h
n
S
p
ie
rs

G
T
h
a
t
k
e
y
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
/c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs

h
a
v
e
ro
b
u
s
t
B
C
P
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

in
p
la
c
e

1
3
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
8

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
B
ra
d
R
o
y
n
o
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
E
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
V
e
ry

L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
C
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

F
a
ilu

re
to

fo
c
u
s
o
n
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g

s
e
rv
ic
e
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

'v
a
lu
e
fo
r
m
o
n
e
y
'
a
n
d
n
o
t

m
e
e
ti
n
g
o
u
r
ta
rg
e
ts

o
r
th
o
s
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
b
y
e
x
te
rn
a
l

C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
k
e
y
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
a
n
d

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
o
n
th
e

in
tr
a
n
e
t
a
n
d
u
s
e
d
a
s
a

'g
o
ld
e
n
th
re
a
d
'
in

re
s
p
e
c
t
o
f

a
ll
s
e
rv
ic
e
p
la
n
n
in
g

A
g
re
e
d
ta
rg
e
ts

a
n
d
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

in
th
e

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t
P
la
n
w
h
ic
h
a
re

u
s
e
d
a
s
th
e
b
a
s
is

o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
.
A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d

G
re
a
te
r
fo
c
u
s
o
n
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
s
u
s
ta
in
e
d

re
s
u
lt
s
/o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
w
it
h
in

th
e

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

o
f
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
m
e
tr
ic
s
.

J
o
y

W
ilm

o
t-
P
a
lm

e
r

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

3



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

a
s
s
e
s
s
o
rs
.

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
.

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
la
n
-
a
g
re
e
d

ta
rg
e
ts

a
n
d
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
in

p
la
c
e
a
n
d
re
v
e
n
u
e
b
u
d
g
e
ts

fo
r
e
a
c
h
P
o
rt
fo
lio

in
c
lu
d
e
d

w
it
h
in

th
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.

B
u
d
g
e
t
-
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
in

p
la
c
e
a
n
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

tr
a
in
e
d
a
c
ro
s
s

th
e
c
o
u
n
c
il

A
n
n
u
a
l
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
ta
rg
e
ts

in
c
lu
d
e
d
in

s
e
rv
ic
e
a
n
d

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
n
d

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
P
la
n
n
in
g

g
u
id
a
n
c
e

A
n
n
u
a
l
V
F
M

s
e
lf

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
c
o
m
p
le
te
d

G
o
o
d
A
n
n
u
a
l
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

&
A
u
d
it
a
n
d
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

L
e
tt
e
rs

o
b
ta
in
e
d

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

b
u
s
in
e
s
s

p
la
n
n
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
re
q
u
ir
e
s

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
s
e
rv
ic
e
a
re
a
s
to

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly

id
e
n
ti
fy

h
o
w

th
e
y
re
la
te

to
o
r
s
u
p
p
o
rt

d
e
liv
e
ry

o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
k
e
y

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
a
n
d
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
.

re
v
e
n
u
e
b
u
d
g
e
ts

fo
r
e
a
c
h
P
o
rt
fo
lio

a
ls
o

in
c
lu
d
e
d
w
it
h
in

th
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
9

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
D
a
w
n
B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
B
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
H
ig
h

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

G
e
tt
in
g
th
e
C
it
y

W
o
rk
in
g

M
a
jo
r
c
it
y
a
n
d
c
it
y
c
e
n
tr
e

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

o
r

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
p
la
n
s

a
n
d
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
a
re

a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly

a
ff
e
c
te
d
b
y
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
,

C
o
n
tr
o
ls

in
p
la
c
e
to

m
o
n
it
o
r

p
ro
g
re
s
s
a
g
a
in
s
t
p
ro
je
c
t

p
la
n
fo
r
a
ll
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

a
n
d
c
a
p
it
a
l
p
ro
je
c
ts
,
W

o
rk

to
re
v
ie
w
im

p
a
c
t
o
f
g
lo
b
a
l

W
o
rk

c
lo
s
e
ly
w
it
h
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d

lo
c
a
l
m
e
d
ia

to
m
a
n
a
g
e
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
is

th
a
t
th
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty

o
f

s
to
ri
e
s
in

th
e
lo
c
a
l
p
re
s
s
a
re

s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
.
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
P
la
n
is

in
p
la
c
e
.
P
re
s
s
re
le
a
s
e
s
is
s
u
e
d

p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
ly
.

D
a
w
n

B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

8
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l
o
r
m
a
rk
e
t

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
a
n
d
/o
r
a
re

n
o
t

d
e
liv
e
re
d
in

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
.

re
c
e
s
s
io
n
o
n
m
a
jo
r
p
ro
je
c
ts

is
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
a
n
d
a
c
ti
o
n

ta
k
e
n
,
C
lo
s
e
lia

is
o
n

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
w
it
h

W
o
rk

c
lo
s
e
ly
w
it
h
th
e
p
ri
v
a
te

s
e
c
to
r

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

a
n
d
o
th
e
r
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs

to
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
a
n
d
re
a
c
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
to

th
e

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic

c
lim

a
te
.

A
p
ip
e
lin

e
o
f
m
a
jo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

is
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
,
w
it
h
s
te
e
ri
n
g
a
n
d
/o
r

w
o
rk
in
g
g
ro
u
p
s
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
p
ro
g
re
s
s

a
n
d
re
a
c
ti
n
g
to

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
.

D
a
w
n

B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

6
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
e
c
to
r,

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
s
ta
ff
in
g

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
re
c
ru
it
e
d
to

C
it
y

E
n
s
u
re

a
ll
fu
n
d
in
g
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r

p
ro
je
c
ts

v
ia

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
g
ra
n
ts

e
tc

a
re

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
,
e
x
p
lo
it
e
d
o
r
m
a
x
im

is
e
d
.

F
u
n
d
in
g
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
a
re

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
,

e
x
p
lo
it
e
d
a
n
d
m
a
x
im

is
e
d
.

D
a
w
n

B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

6
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

D
e
v
.
&
E
c
o
n
o
m
y
to

in
c
re
a
s
e
ti
m
e
o
n
m
a
jo
r

p
ro
je
c
t
d
e
liv
e
ry

to
d
ri
v
e

fo
rw

a
rd

a
t
fa
s
te
s
t
p
a
c
e

T
h
e
c
o
u
n
c
il
w
o
rk
s
c
lo
s
e
ly
w
it
h
th
e
p
ri
v
a
te

s
e
c
to
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
,
R
e
g
is
te
re
d
S
o
c
ia
l

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
's
e
tc

to
id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n
y
n
e
w

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r
c
it
y
m
a
jo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

A
p
ip
e
lin

e
o
f
m
a
jo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

is
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
.

D
a
w
n

B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

6
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

p
o
s
s
ib
le
.
R
e
g
u
la
r
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s

fo
r
k
e
y
m
e
m
b
e
rs

o
f

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n

M
e
m
b
e
rs

a
re

b
ri
e
fe
d
o
n
th
e
s
ta
tu
s
o
f

R
e
g
u
la
r
re
p
o
rt
in
g
to

M
e
m
b
e
rs

a
t

D
a
w
n

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

6
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

4



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

fo
r
k
e
y
m
e
m
b
e
rs

o
f

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n

p
ro
je
c
ts

a
n
d
a
re

a
d
v
is
e
d
a
t
th
e
e
a
rl
ie
s
t

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
if
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

a
re

lik
e
ly
to

b
e
d
e
fe
rr
e
d
,

d
e
la
y
e
d
o
r
n
o
t
p
ro
c
e
e
d
e
d
w
it
h
.

M
a
jo
r
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
p
ro
g
re
s
s
re
p
o
rt
e
d
th
ro
u
g
h

C
o
rv
u
a
n
d
C
a
b
in
e
t
M
e
m
b
e
r
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
.

B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

R
e
v
ie
w
a
ll
n
e
w
o
r
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

p
la
n
s
to

a
s
s
e
s
s
th
e
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
ili
ty

ta
k
in
g

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
th
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic

c
lim

a
te
.

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
P
la
n
re
v
ie
w
e
d
a
t
h
a
lf
-y
e
a
r

p
o
in
t
a
n
d
a
n
y
re
v
is
io
n
s
a
g
re
e
d
w
it
h

C
a
b
in
e
t
M
e
m
b
e
r.

D
a
w
n

B
a
x
e
n
d
a
le

G
7
/4
/2
0
1
0

6
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
1
0

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
B
ra
d
R
o
y
n
o
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
B
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
H
ig
h

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
B
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
H
ig
h

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
L
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

T
h
e
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l
a
s
s
e
ts

th
a
t
th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il
is

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
a
re

n
o
t
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
o
r

c
o
n
tr
o
lle

d

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

A
s
s
e
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
P
la
n
in

p
la
c
e
.

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
S
tr
a
te
g
y

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
a
n
d
in

p
la
c
e
.

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
S
e
rv
ic
e
B
u
ild

in
g
R
e
v
ie
w

J
o
h
n
S
p
ie
rs

G
1
4
/1
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

D
e
liv
e
r
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
S
tr
a
te
g
y

J
o
h
n
S
p
ie
rs

G
1
4
/1
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

S
tr
a
te
g
ic

is
s
u
e
s
a
re

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
b
y
th
e
P
o
lic
y

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
rs

T
e
a
m

a
n
d

th
e
S
o
u
th
a
m
p
to
n
P
ro
p
e
rt
y

G
ro
u
p
w
it
h
c
ro
s
s

E
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
a
ll
s
ta
ff
w
it
h
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty

fo
r

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
th
e
ir
h
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d

s
a
fe
ty

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
h
a
v
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
a
n
d
tr
a
in
in
g
to

b
e
a
b
le

to
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
th
is

ro
le

P
C
O
T

G
7
/9
/2
0
1
0

1
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
.

R
e
p
a
ir
s
a
n
d
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
-

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
a
n
d
C
a
p
it
a
l

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
in

p
la
c
e
.

Id
e
n
ti
fy

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

w
it
h
s
p
e
c
if
ic

h
e
a
lt
h

a
n
d
s
a
fe
ty

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
fo
r
e
a
c
h
a
s
s
e
t,

i.
e
.
'r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

p
e
o
p
le
'
a
n
d
'd
u
ty

h
o
ld
e
rs
'

a
n
d
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
a
ll
H
&
S
it
e
m
s
h
a
v
e
a

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
'o
w
n
e
r'
fo
r
e
v
e
ry

a
s
s
e
t.

J
o
h
n
S
p
ie
rs

G
7
/9
/2
0
1
0

1
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
S
a
fe
ty

S
te
e
ri
n
g

G
ro
u
p
th
a
t
m
e
e
ts

w
e
e
k
ly
to

d
e
v
e
lo
p
a
n
d
im

p
le
m
e
n
t
a

s
tr
a
te
g
ic

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
to

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
m
e
e
ts

a
ll
it
s
h
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
s
a
fe
ty

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
e
v
ie
w
a
n
d
a
g
re
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t
S
e
rv
ic
e
L
e
v
e
l

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
a
t
H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d

S
a
fe
ty

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
a
re

c
le
a
rl
y
s
e
t
o
u
t.

F
o
r

s
c
h
o
o
ls
,
th
e
F
a
ir
F
u
n
d
in
g
S
L
A
s
h
o
u
ld

s
e
t

o
u
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
o
f
th
e
H
e
a
d
te
a
c
h
e
r

(f
o
r
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
a
n
d
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
)
w
h
e
re

th
e
y
h
a
v
e
'o
p
te
d
in
'
a
n
d

a
ls
o
'o
p
te
d
o
u
t'
.

J
o
h
n
S
p
ie
rs

G
8
/9
/2
0
1
0

1
/4
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
1
1

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
L
o
rr
a
in
e
B
ro

w
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
&

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

K
e
e
p
in
g
th
e

c
it
y
c
le
a
n
a
n
d

g
re
e
n
/
G
e
tt
in
g

th
e
c
it
y

w
o
rk
in
g
.

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
p
ro
g
re
s
s
o
n

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
th
e
c
a
p
it
a
l

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t
re
q
u
ir
e
d
(w

it
h
in

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
a
n
d
C
it
y
)
to

d
e
v
e
lo
p

a
n
d
im

p
le
m
e
n
t
a

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n

a
n
d
a
c
ti
o
n
p
la
n
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
in
g

a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
m
a
jo
r
w
e
a
th
e
r

a
n
d
c
lim

a
te

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ti
e
s
-

A
G
re
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
s
S
tr
a
te
g
y

h
a
s
b
e
e
n
a
d
o
p
te
d
b
y
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.

F
u
n
d
in
g
s
e
c
u
re
d
fo
r
a

s
u
rf
a
c
e
w
a
te
r
d
ra
in
a
g
e

s
tu
d
y
.

C
ro
s
s
C
o
u
n
c
il
F
lo
o
d
R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
ic

F
lo
o
d
R
is
k
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
.

S
F
R
A
2
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
a
n
d
fe
e
d
in
g
in
to

C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e
M
a
s
te
rp
la
n
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

W
o
rk
in
g
w
it
h
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
A
g
e
n
c
y
to

d
e
te
rm

in
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

p
la
n
n
in
g

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
to

b
e
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in

a
fl
o
o
d

ri
s
k
.
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in

L
D
F
C
o
re

S
tr
a
te
g
y
!
e
n
s
u
re

re
g
u
la
r

re
v
ie
w
to

k
e
e
p
p
o
lic
y
a
n
d
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
u
p

to
d
a
te
.

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

A
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
rs

1
8
8
a
n
d
1
8
9

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
f

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

s
u
c
h
a
s
fl
o
o
d

d
e
fe
n
c
e
s
,
s
u
rf
a
c
e
w
a
te
r

d
ra
in
a
g
e
re
n
e
w
a
l
a
n
d
g
re
e
n

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
B
o
a
rd

m
e
e
ts

e
v
e
ry

tw
o
m
o
n
th
s
to

ta
c
k
le

fl
o
o
d
ri
s
k
is
s
u
e
s
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g

th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
to

s
e
t
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
fo
r
w
o
rk

a
n
d

A
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

s
tr
a
te
g
y
fo
r

a
d
a
p
ti
n
g
to

c
lim

a
te

c
h
a
n
g
e
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ti
e
s

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

G
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r
1
8
8

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

5



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

d
e
fe
n
c
e
s
,
s
u
rf
a
c
e
w
a
te
r

d
ra
in
a
g
e
re
n
e
w
a
l
a
n
d
g
re
e
n

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
.

fl
o
o
d
ri
s
k
is
s
u
e
s
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g

th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
to

s
e
t
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
fo
r
w
o
rk

a
n
d

is
b
e
in
g
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
E
U

G
R
a
B
S

p
ro
je
c
t.

A
G
re
e
n
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

s
tu
d
y
h
a
s

b
e
e
n
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
b
y
P
U
S
H
.

p
ro
v
id
e
a
n
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
b
a
s
e

fo
r
fu
n
d
in
g
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

C
a
p
it
a
a
re

p
ro
je
c
t
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
th
e
S
u
rf
a
c
e

W
a
te
r
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
S
tu
d
y
.
W

e
ll

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r
m
e
e
ti
n
g
h
e
ld
.
1
s
t

m
ile

s
o
tn
e
c
o
m
p
le
te
d

A
P
ro
je
c
t
In
it
ia
ti
o
n
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
h
a
s
n
o
w

b
e
e
n
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
,
to

im
p
le
m
e
n
t
th
e

s
u
rf
a
c
e
w
a
te
r
d
ra
in
a
g
e
s
tu
d
y
a
n
d
a

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t'
s
b
ri
e
f
p
re
p
a
re
d
.

M
ic
k
B
is
h
o
p

A
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r
1
8
8

2
3
/7
/2
0
1
0

9
/6
/2
0
1
2

O
p
e
n

C
o
a
s
ta
l
D
e
fe
n
c
e
s
tr
a
te
g
y
to

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
.

C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e
C
o
a
s
ta
l
D
e
fe
n
c
e
S
tr
a
te
g
y

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
a
n
d
d
u
e
fo
r
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
in

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
2
.
$
2
9
0
k
o
f
fu
n
d
in
g

h
a
s
b
e
e
n
a
w
a
rd
e
d
b
y
th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

A
g
e
n
c
y
to

m
e
e
t
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
fe
e
s
,
w
it
h

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
p
ro
v
id
e
d
to

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in

h
o
u
s
e
P
ro
je
c
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.

S
e
e
k
in
g
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
fu
n
d
in
g
fo
r

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
b
a
s
e
.

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

G
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r
1
8
9

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

D
e
liv
e
r
a
g
re
e
a
c
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
a
n
d

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
w
a
e
th
e
r
a
n
d
c
lim

a
te

c
h
a
n
g
e

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ti
e
s
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
f

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

s
u
c
h
a
s
fl
o
o
d
d
e
fe
n
c
e
s

s
u
rf
a
c
e
w
a
te
r
d
ra
in
a
g
e
re
n
e
w
a
l
a
n
d

g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

T
h
e
C
o
a
s
ta
l,
F
lo
o
d
E
ro
s
io
n
R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
y
fu
n
d
in
g
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d

fo
r
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
in

2
0
1
2

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

A
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r
1
8
8

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
1
2

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
L
o
rr
a
in
e
B
ro

w
n

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
&

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

K
e
e
p
in
g
th
e

C
it
y
C
le
a
n
a
n
d

G
re
e
n
/
G
e
tt
in
g

th
e
C
it
y

W
o
rk
in
g

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
p
ro
g
re
s
s
o
n
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
d
e
liv
e
ry

p
la
n
s
fo
r
th
e

C
a
rb
o
n
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t
to

re
d
u
c
e
C
O
2

le
v
e
ls

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
to

a
v
o
id

s
e
v
e
re

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
fr
o
m

C
e
n
tr
a
l
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
R
is
k
o
f

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
lo
s
s
o
f
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
.

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
C
o
m
b
in
e
d

H
e
a
t
a
n
d
P
o
w
e
r
("
C
H
P
")

s
c
h
e
m
e
in

p
la
c
e
.

C
H
P
in

p
la
c
e
fo
r
C
o
u
n
c
il

b
u
ild

in
g
s
a
n
d
o
th
e
r
k
e
y

s
it
e
s
.

1
G
H
S
,
C
iv
ic

a
n
d
M
a
rl
a
n
d
s
c
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
in

lin
e
w
it
h
S
C
C

a
d
m
in

b
u
ild

in
g
s

ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t
fo
r

S
e
a
C
it
y
y
e
t
to

b
e
s
ig
n
e
d
a
n
d
c
o
o
lin

g
fo
r

a
d
m
in

b
u
ild

in
g
s
u
n
d
e
r
re
v
ie
w
.
G
a
n
tr
y

a
n
d
W

o
o
ls
to
n
m
ix
e
d
u
s
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

C
H
P
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
s
e
c
u
re
d
a
n
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

in
p
ro
g
re
s
s
.

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

A
9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

E
n
e
rg
y
B
o
a
rd

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
,

d
ra
w
in
g
to
g
e
th
e
r
k
e
y

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

w
it
h
in

th
e
C
it
y
to

c
o
lle

c
t
d
a
ta

a
n
d
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e

a
c
ti
o
n
s
to

re
d
u
c
e
C
O
2
.

A
n
e
n
e
rg
y
re
v
ie
w
a
c
ro
s
s
a
ll

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
h
o
m
e
s
h
a
s
b
e
e
n

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
n
d
re
o
p
rt
s

p
ro
v
id
e
d
to

a
ll
h
o
m
e

S
e
c
u
re

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
P
C
T
/N

H
S
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

to
re
d
u
c
in
g
e
n
e
rg
y
c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
w
it
h
in

th
e
C
it
y
.

C
a
rb
o
n
m
a
p
o
f
th
e
C
it
y
is

b
e
in
g

p
re
p
a
re
d
.
N
I1
8
6
ta
re
g
t
is

b
e
in
g
m
e
t.

A
n
e
v
e
n
t
in

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
w
ill
s
e
e
k
to

w
id
e
n
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip

o
f
th
e
E
n
e
rg
y

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

a
n
d
to

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
a

m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t
b
e
tw
e
e
n

S
M
E
s
a
n
d
la
rg
e
r
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
e
n
e
rg
e
y
s
a
v
in
g
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s

in
p
la
c
e
.

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

G
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r
1
8
6

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
.

E
n
e
rg
y
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
in

p
la
c
e
.

C
a
rb
o
n
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
tr
e
tc
h
ta
rg
e
t
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
.

C
ro
s
s
C
o
u
n
c
il
g
ro
u
p
m
e
e
ts

to
a
d
d
re
s
s

e
n
e
rg
y
a
n
d
w
a
te
r
u
s
e
in

h
o
u
s
in
g
.
C
ro
s
s

C
o
u
n
c
il
g
ro
u
p
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
to

p
ro
v
id
e
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
d
a
ta

o
n
C
O
2

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
to

a
v
o
id

C
R
C

fi
n
e
s
a
n
d
to

id
e
n
ti
fy

p
ri
o
ri
ty

C
O
2
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
p
ro
je
c
ts
.

A
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
C
O
2
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
,

th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
S
a
lix

fu
n
d
in
g
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
,

h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
im

p
lm

e
n
te
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
th
e
C
a
rb
o
n
T
ru
s
t.

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

G
C
a
rb
o
n
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

("
C
R
C
")
ta
rg
e
ts

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
w
it
h
k
e
y
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

o
n

e
n
e
rg
y
is
s
u
e
s
.

E
n
g
a
g
in
g
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

to
ta
k
e
u
p

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
o
f
fr
e
e
e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l
c
a
r

re
c
h
a
rg
e
in
s
ta
lla

ti
o
n
s
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
c
it
y

th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
P
F
I
S
tr
e
e
t
L
ig
h
ti
n
g

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

G
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r
1
8
6

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

6



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t
a
n
d
th
e
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
P
lu
g
g
e
d
in

P
la
c
e
s
s
c
h
e
m
e

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
o
f
e
n
e
rg
y
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
p
ro
je
c
ts

th
ro
u
g
h
L
A
A
ta
rg
e
ts

N
I
1
8
5
a
n
d
N
I
1
8
6

C
R
C

P
o
lic
y
a
n
d
A
c
ti
o
n
P
la
n
a
d
o
p
te
d
.

N
e
e
d
to

d
e
liv
e
r
a
c
ti
o
n
p
la
n
m
e
a
s
u
re
s

a
c
ro
s
s
a
ll
s
e
rv
ic
e
a
re
a
s
.
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
to

P
C
o
T
,
C
O
M
T
a
n
d
M
e
m
b
e
rs
.
N
e
e
d
to

e
n
s
u
re

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
fu
n
d
in
g
to

m
a
in
ta
in

fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty

p
ro
je
c
ts

fo
r
e
n
e
rg
y

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
a
n
e
w
U
s
e
o
f

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
c
ti
o
n
P
la
n
to

re
d
u
c
e
fo
s
s
il

fu
e
l
c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il.

P
a
u
l
N
ic
h
o
ls

A
C
a
rb
o
n
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

("
C
R
C
")
a
n
d
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
d
ic
a
to
r

1
8
5

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
6

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
N
ic
k
M
u
rp

h
y

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
B
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
H
ig
h

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
D
4

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
M
a
rg

in
a
l

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
C
u
s
to
m
e
r/
C
it
iz
e
n

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
L
e
a
d
e
rs

D
e
liv
e
r

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
a
n
d

s
tr
iv
e
fo
r

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

A
m
a
jo
r
in
c
id
e
n
t
o
r
e
v
e
n
t

o
c
c
u
rs

th
a
t
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y

im
p
a
ir
s
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
a
b
ili
ty

to
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
o
r
p
ro
v
id
e
a
s
e
rv
ic
e
to

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
.

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
P
la
n
s
-

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

a
n
d
D
iv
is
io
n
a
l

P
la
n
s
in

p
la
c
e
in

a
ll
s
e
rv
ic
e

a
re
a
s
in

lin
e
w
it
h
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

te
m
p
la
te
.
P
la
n
s
re
v
ie
w
e
d

o
n
a
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
b
a
s
is

b
y

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

T
e
a
m
s
.

B
C
P
s
fu
lly

re
v
ie
w
e
d
(a
n
d

te
s
te
d
in

p
a
rt
)
e
v
e
ry

tw
o

y
e
a
rs

o
r
a
s
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

C
a
p
it
a
c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
to

c
o
rp
o
ra
te

s
ta
n
d
a
rd

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

a
n
d
s
ig
n
e
d

M
o
U

in
p
la
c
e
.

IT
D
is
a
s
te
r
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

P
la
n
h
a
s
b
e
e
n

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
th
e
k
e
y
c
o
u
n
c
il
IT

s
y
s
te
m
s

A
D
R

p
la
n
in

p
la
c
e
th
a
t
c
o
v
e
rs

th
e
k
e
y

IT
s
y
s
te
m
s
a
n
d
a
n
n
u
a
l
D
R

te
s
ti
n
g
is

c
o
m
p
le
te

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

A
T
o
m
e
e
t
C
a
p
it
a
c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t

8
/1
/2
0
1
1

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

S
C
C

M
a
jo
r
In
c
id
e
n
t
P
la
n
,

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
a
n
d
ra
n
g
e
o
f

s
p
e
c
if
ic

e
m
e
re
g
e
n
c
y

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
p
la
n
s
in

p
la
c
e
to

a
d
d
re
s
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
is
s
u
e
s

T
h
e
IT

D
is
a
s
te
r
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

p
la
n
w
ill
b
e

te
s
te
d
a
n
n
u
a
lly

fo
r
th
e
c
ri
ti
c
a
l
s
y
s
te
m
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
in

th
e
S
S
P
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
S
y
s
te
m

o
w
n
e
rs

w
ill
b
e
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
v
e
ri
fy
in
g

th
a
t
th
e
ir
d
a
ta

h
a
s
b
e
e
n
re
c
o
v
e
re
d
a
s

th
e
y
e
x
p
e
c
te
d

A
ll
d
a
ta

re
s
to
re
d
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly

o
n
a
ll

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
c
ri
ti
c
a
l
s
y
s
te
m
s
a
n
d
v
e
ri
fi
e
d

b
y
th
e
s
y
s
te
m

o
w
n
e
rs
.

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
T
o
m
e
e
t
C
a
p
it
a
c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t

8
/1
/2
0
1
1

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

a
n
d
/o
r
re
s
o
p
n
d
to

le
g
a
l
o
r

s
ta
tu
to
ry

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t
ie
.

F
lu

P
a
n
d
e
m
ic

P
la
n
,
O
il
a
n
d

C
h
e
m
ic
a
l
P
o
llu

ti
o
n
P
la
n
,

S
o
to
n
S
a
fe

'Z
'
B
e
rt
h
P
la
n

a
n
d
F
lo
o
d
P
la
n
.

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
P
la
n
n
in
g
u
n
it
h
a
v
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

a
re
v
is
e
d
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

a
n
d
d
iv
is
io
n
a
l
B
C
P

w
h
ic
h
is

n
o
w
m
o
re

a
lig

n
e
d
to

n
e
w

B
S
2
5
9
9
9
.
A
g
re
e
d
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
re
v
ie
w
o
f

c
o
n
ta
c
ts

a
n
d
a
n
n
u
a
l
e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
to

b
e

u
n
d
e
ta
k
e
n
.

J
o
n
D
y
e
r-
S
la
d
e

G
U
p
g
ra
d
e
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
to

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t

c
o
rp
o
ra
te

s
ta
n
d
a
rd

5
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
h
a
rd

to
re
a
c
h
g
ro
u
p
s
,
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le

p
e
o
p
le
,
fa
it
h
g
ro
u
p
s
a
n
d

th
o
s
e
g
ro
u
p
s
w
h
e
re

E
n
g
lis
h

is
n
o
t
th
e
ir
fi
rs
t
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
,

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
th
ro
u
g
h

P
C
o
T
(R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
B
o
a
rd
)
to

c
o
n
fi
rm

to
th
e
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
P
la
n
n
in
g
a
n
d
B
u
s
in
e
s
s

th
a
t
B
C
P
s
in

th
e
ir
a
re
a
s
a
re

in
p
la
c
e
,

te
s
te
d
o
n
a
p
e
ri
o
d
ic

b
a
s
is

a
n
d
/o
r
to

p
la
n

te
s
ti
n
g
in

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
e
E
P
&
B
C

M
a
n
a
g
e
r
to

e
n
s
u
re

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
.
L
e
a
d
o
ff
ic
e
r(
s
)
to

b
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

R
o
b
e
rt
C
a
rr

A
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
P
la
n
s
a
re

ro
b
u
s
t,
te
s
te
d
a
n
d
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

1
5
/2
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

tr
a
n
s
la
ti
o
n
a
n
d

in
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
s
e
rv
ic
e

n
e
tw
o
rk
s
a
s
d
e
ta
ile

d
w
it
h
in

th
e
M
a
jo
r
In
c
id
e
n
t
P
la
n
.

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

T
e
a
m

in
p
la
c
e
.

A
ra
n
g
e
o
f
s
p
e
c
if
ic

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
re
s
p
o
n
s
e

p
la
n
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
to

a
d
d
re
s
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
is
s
u
e
s
a
n
d
/o
r
re
s
p
o
n
d
to

le
g
a
l

A
ll
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
p
la
n
s
a
re

a
ll

in
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h
re
le
v
a
n
t
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n

a
n
d
a
re

re
v
ie
w
e
d
a
n
d
te
s
te
d
a
s

J
o
n
D
y
e
r-
S
la
d
e

G
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
p
la
n
s
a
re

ro
b
u
s
t
a
n
d

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
w
it
h
in

a
n
d
b
e
tw
e
e
n

re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
.
P
u
b
lic

5
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

7



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

th
e
M
a
jo
r
In
c
id
e
n
t
P
la
n
.

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

T
e
a
m

in
p
la
c
e
.

o
r
s
ta
tu
to
ry

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t
i.
e
.
F
lu

P
a
n
d
e
m
ic

P
la
n
,
F
lo
o
d
P
la
n
,
O
il
a
n
d

C
h
e
m
ic
a
l
P
o
llu

ti
o
n
P
la
n
,
S
o
to
n
S
a
fe

'Z
'

B
e
rt
h
P
la
n
e
tc
.

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
b
y
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l

e
v
e
n
ts
,
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
le
a
fl
e
ts

a
n
d

n
o
n
re
s
tr
ic
te
d
p
la
n
s
a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n

w
e
b
s
it
e
e
tc

W
e
e
k
ly
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
T
e
a
m

ro
ta

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
.
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
b
u
lle

ti
n

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
.

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
p
la
n
s
a
re

re
v
ie
w
e
d

o
n
a
p
e
ri
o
d
ic

b
a
s
is

w
it
h
't
e
s
ti
n
g
'
ta
rg
e
te
d

o
n
th
e
h
ig
h
ri
s
k
a
re
a
s

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
p
la
n
s
a
re

re
v
ie
w
e
d
o
n
a
p
e
ri
o
d
ic

b
a
s
is

w
it
h

't
e
s
ti
n
g
'
ta
rg
e
te
d
o
n
th
e
h
ig
h
ri
s
k

a
re
a
s
.
P
la
n
n
in
g
&
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y

W
o
rk
p
la
n

J
o
n
D
y
e
r-
S
la
d
e

G
C
iv
il
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
A
c
t
2
0
0
4
,
H

&
IO

W
L
R
F
a
n
d
D
iv
is
io
n
a
l

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
P
la
n
C
o
m
p
lia

n
t
-
P
la
n
s

re
v
ie
w
a
b
le

2
-3

y
e
a
rl
y

5
/8
/2
0
1
0

3
0
/9
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

R
is
k
N
u
m
b
e
r
:
0
0
4

R
is
k
O
w
n
e
r
:
R
o
b
C
a
rr

L
a
s
t
R
e
v
ie
w

D
a
te
:
3
1
A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
1
0

N
e
x
t
R
e
v
ie
w

d
a
te
:
2
2
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
0

In
it
ia
l
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
C
2

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t:
C
ri
ti
c
a
l

T
a
rg

e
t
R
is
k
S
c
o
re
:
E
3

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
:
V
e
ry

L
o
w

Im
p
a
c
t:
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t

R
is
k
C
a
te
g
o
ry

-
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
-
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
&

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
P
la
n
n
in
g

In
v
e
s
t
in

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
fa
ils

to
ta
k
e
in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
th
e
lik
e
ly
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
,

in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l
re
la
ti
o
n
a
n
d
s
k
ill
s

re
te
n
ti
o
n
is
s
u
e
s
th
a
t
m
a
y
a
ri
s
e

a
s
a
re
s
u
lt
o
f
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
in

p
u
b
lic

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

a
n
d
a
s
a

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

a
n
d
/o
r
s
ta
ff
s
k
ill
s
a
re

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt
a
n
d

d
e
liv
e
r
th
e
a
g
re
e
d
le
v
e
ls

o
f

s
e
rv
ic
e
a
n
d
/o
r
th
e
re

is
a

b
re
a
c
h
o
r
fa
ilu

re
to

m
e
e
t
th
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

o
f
n
e
w
o
r

e
x
is
it
in
g
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
.

E
F
Q
M

'E
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
M
o
d
e
l'

a
d
o
p
te
d
o
n
a
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

b
a
s
is

P
ro
g
re
s
s
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
S
tr
a
te
g
y
is

m
o
n
it
o
re
d

C
o
u
n
c
il
is

a
n
Ii
P

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
,

in
c
lu
d
in
g
id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
n
e
w
o
r

e
m
e
rg
in
g
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
fo
rm

s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e

a
n
n
u
a
l
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
p
la
n
n
in
g

p
ro
c
e
s
s

K
e
y
le
g
is
la
ti
v
e
o
r
p
o
lic
y

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
a
re

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d

v
ia

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
,
S
e
n
io
r

M
a
n
a
g
e
r
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
,

w
e
e
k
ly
b
u
lle

ti
n
a
s

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n
o
n
th
e
in
tr
a
n
e
t

T
h
e
W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
S
tr
a
te
g
y
is

to
b
e
u
p
d
a
te
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

it
is

u
p
to

d
a
te

a
n
d
re
le
v
a
n
t
-

A
p
ri
l
2
0
1
1
.

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
A
b
le

to
re
ta
in

a
n
d
a
tt
ra
c
t
h
ig
h

q
u
a
lit
y
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

to
k
e
y
p
o
s
ts

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
A
c
a
d
e
m
y

F
u
ll
Ii
P
re
-a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
to

ta
k
e

p
la
c
e
in

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
1
1

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
A
b
le

to
re
ta
in

a
n
d
a
tt
ra
c
t
h
ig
h

q
u
a
lit
y
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

to
k
e
y
p
o
s
ts

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

tr
a
in
in
g
in

p
la
c
e

A
ll
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
h
a
v
e

R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
s
e
rv
ic
e
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
p
la
n
s
to

id
e
n
ti
fy

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
s
u
p
p
o
rt

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

m
in
im

u
m

o
f
3
d
a
y
s
le
a
rn
in
g

p
e
r
y
e
a
r
w
h
ic
h
is

m
o
n
it
o
re
d

v
ia

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l
p
ro
c
e
s
s
/

N
e
w
k
e
y
le
g
is
la
ti
v
e
/
p
o
lic
y
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
a
n
d

th
e
ir
im

p
a
c
ts

o
n
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
to

b
e
b
ri
e
fe
d

a
s
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

A
n
n
u
a
l
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l
fo
r
e
a
c
h

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
w
h
ic
h
in
c
lu
d
e
s
a

p
o
s
it
iv
e
d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
th
a
t
a

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
y
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t
in

A
n
n
u
a
l
re
v
ie
w
to

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
a
ll

(C
o
rp
o
ra
te

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
)
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
is

u
p
to

d
a
te

a
n
d
th
a
t
a
ll
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

is
s
u
e
s
a
re

in
c
lu
d
e
d

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
N
o
b
re
a
c
h
e
s
o
f
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
o
r
a
d
v
e
rs
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
t

fr
o
m

th
e
e
x
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

8



S
tr
a
te
g
ic

R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

K
e
y
P
ri
o
ri
ty

/

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
o
f
R
is
k
E
v
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
lr
e
a
d
y
in

p
la
c
e

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
A
c
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls

U
p
d
a
te

o
f
R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
c
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

S
ta
tu
s

C
ri
ti
c
a
l
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
F
a
c
to
rs

a
n
d

K
P
I'
s

D
a
te

la
s
t

u
p
d
a
te

D
a
te

o
f

n
e
x
t

re
v
ie
w

R
is
k

S
ta
tu
s

p
la
c
e
fo
r
th
e
ro
le
.

A
p
p
ra
is
a
l
in
c
lu
d
e
s
a
re
v
ie
w

a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s

S
ta
ff
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d

u
n
io
n
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
ta
k
e
s

p
la
c
e
fo
r
a
ll
m
a
jo
r
c
h
a
n
g
e
s

E
n
s
u
re

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
T
ra
in
in
g
fo
r

n
e
w
L
e
v
e
l
1
a
n
d
L
e
v
e
l
2
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

in
in
c
lu
d
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.
P
ro
v
id
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
T
ra
in
in
g
fo
r
L
e
v
e
l
1
a
n
d
L
e
v
e
l

2
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

w
it
h
p
e
ri
o
d
ic

re
fr
e
s
h
e
r

tr
a
in
in
g
.
In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
o
f
N
E
T
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
b
y

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
0
.

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
N
o
b
re
a
c
h
e
s
o
f
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
o
r
a
d
v
e
rs
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
t

fr
o
m

th
e
e
x
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/3
/2
0
1
1

O
p
e
n

im
p
a
c
ti
n
g
o
n
th
e
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
.

A
n
n
u
a
l
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l
p
ro
c
e
s
s
to

b
e
re
v
ie
w
e
d
.

S
a
ra
h
D
e
n
n
is

G
9
/9
/2
0
1
0

3
1
/1
2
/2
0
1
0

O
p
e
n

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary - Directorate Risk Registers - September 2010

Directorate Risk Description

Risk 

Score 

(RAG)

L
ik
elih

o
o
d
 

Im
p
act

1
Children's Services & 

Learning

Failure to meet ambitious targets in relation to headline LAA targets for service outcomes and other key service 

performance, e.g. raising standards in GCSE, Key Stage 2 results or arrangements for Children in Care, or closing 

the gap in ECM outcomes between priority neighbourhoods and other parts of the city, and associated risks to future 

performance and LAA reward grant.

A3 Very High Significant

2 Neighbourhoods Failure to satisfy our residents and tenants aspirations for future service delivery / standards across the city. A3 Very High Significant

3 Environment

The deteriorating financial situation and current investment levels result in an Inability to maintain key infrastructure 

within the city, to an minimum statutory standards, (including the condition and SAFETY of the road and footway 

infrastructure and services).

B2 High Critical

4 Environment
Risk that government funding may be cut more severely than anticipated and further unexpected or unplanned 

financial impact on services in 2011/12 and beyond, due to the overall local and national economic situation
B2 High Critical

5 Neighbourhoods Failure to secure funding due to the reduction of external funding opportunities and government grants. B2 High Critical

Children's Services & 
Failure to secure intended outcomes from key strategic products and activities (e.g. OfSTED CAA Grade, Budget 

6
Children's Services & 

Learning

Failure to secure intended outcomes from key strategic products and activities (e.g. OfSTED CAA Grade, Budget 

Savings targets etc.), through management capacity being overwhelmed by competing strategic priorities within the 

Council / Directorate.

B3 High Significant

7 Neighbourhoods
Partnership opportunities and benefits not being fully realised with Private sector companies and/or voluntary 

organisations.
B3 High Significant

8 Neighbourhoods
Consequences of implementing agreed saving targets and other efficiencies due to industrial action and poor 

employee relations having impact on service delivery.
B3 High Significant

9
Children's Services & 

Learning

Loss of a major service or service facility (e.g. failure to deliver any significant planned service, either directly or 

through contracted third parties where this would require significant business contingency arrangements).
C2 Significant Critical

10
Children's Services & 

Learning

Managing the capacity of current infrastructure to cope with the surge of Primary school places - e.g. another 400 

reception places needed within 5 years, and the impact opf this on other council services.
C2 Significant Critical

11 Environment
Service disruption and loss of productivity due to service restructures, new partnership organisation and office 

relocations (e.g. Highways Service Partnership, Accommodation Strategy Action Plan and City Depot projects
C2 Significant Critical

12
Health & Adult Social 

Care

That the transformation of Social Care services through the Putting People First programme fails to realise the 

required fundamental change in how Adult Social Care within the City is commissioned, provided and delivered.
C2 Significant Critical

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 3



13 Chief Executives 

The value of the communication team is not understood by the organisation thus resulting in a lack of investment, 

support and appropriate professional communcation activity with service users, thus reducing satisfaction with 

council services

C3 Significant Significant

14 Chief Executives 
Failing to gain support for the activities which enhance the council's reputation and increase satisfaction levels for 

the council as a whole, particularly at a time of highly challenging public finances
C3 Significant Significant

15
Children's Services & 

Learning
A major Child Protection failure C3 Significant Significant

16
Children's Services & 

Learning

Significant loss of confidence in the management of the service in the eyes of key partners in schools and other 

agencies
C3 Significant Significant

17
Children's Services & 

Learning

Loss of staff and/or performance during transition and implementation of 2010 Directorate restructure leading to loss 

of key expertise or decline in performance in some service areas.
C3 Significant Significant

18
Children's Services & 

Learning

Major failure in relation to the delivery of the Capital Programme, as a consequence of overspend and/or late 

delivery in relation to capital projects in schools and other children's services settings
C3 Significant Significant

19
Children's Services & 

Learning

It is proving both difficult and costly to provide appropriate provision for rising numbers of children and young people 

with complex needs, particularly in relation to challenging behaviour among some older young people.
C3 Significant Significant

20 Environment

Risk of significant financial penalties if the council does not meet its cabon reduction targets as well as potential loss 

of reputation for poor performance in our Use oof Resources assessment and LAA designated target (re: CAA 

judgement). Caused by: insufficient progress made on adaptation and mitigation of climate chnage and meeting 

energy efficiency and Carbon Reduction Commitment targets.

C3 Significant Significant

energy efficiency and Carbon Reduction Commitment targets.

21 Environment
Ineffective communications would impact on the Council's reputation resulting in poor customer care and perception 

of value for money services
C3 Significant Significant

22 Environment

Lack of integration between Directorate and Corporate planning of resources could result in disruption to Directorate 

Business Plans and ability to deliver on priorities (need to adequately plan staff and finance resources to deliver on 

Corporate Strategic requirements).

C3 Significant Significant

23 Environment Failure of partnerships to deliver the service required - resulting in both financial and reputational risks C3 Significant Significant

24 Neighbourhoods
Failure to deliver commitments, achieve performance targets or demonstrate performance due to insufficient 

resources.
C3 Significant Significant

25 Neighbourhoods Agreed saving targets and other efficiencies not being realised. C3 Significant Significant

26 Neighbourhoods
A major incident or event occurs that significantly impairs the Council’s / Directorate’s ability to function or provide a 

service to customers.
C3 Significant Significant

27 Resources
The Property Strategy Action Plan, and in particular the service building review, is not implemented in a timely and 

effective manner, resulting in a failure to meet the Council's business objectives
C3 Significant Significant



28 Resources
The joint business planning approach with the PCT is ineffective resulting in a lack of support for the Joint 

Commissioning Board and Director
C3 Significant Significant

29
Children's Services & 

Learning

Ensuring effective ongoing relationship between SCC and schools over ongoing issues relating to the transfer of 

support services to SSP to help prevent; failure of support services, damage to organisational reputation and/or poor 

service outcomes

C4 Significant Marginal

30 Neighbourhoods Failure to meet our critical health and safety obligations to our staff, customers and residents of the city. D1 Low Catastrophic

31 Neighbourhoods Partnership opportunities and benefits not being fully realised with Capita and internal departments. D2 Low Critical

32 Neighbourhoods Partnership opportunities and benefits not being fully realised with cross organisational partnership working D2 Low Critical

33 Resources Arrangements are insufficiently robust to identify/reduce the risk of fraud in the light of the current economic climate D2 Low Critical

34 Environment
Risk to effective delivery of the Highwaysand Transport Capital Programme in the run up to the delivery of the 

Highways Service Partnership (including failure of the HSP to deliver on time)
D3 Low Significant

35
Health & Adult Social 

Care

Not following key information management procedures for personal date or not using secure forms of data sharing 

and transmission leads to a breach in security standards.
D3 Low Significant

36
Health & Adult Social 

Care

Changes to Independent Living Fund rules will result in cost pressures to the Council for clients who are funded and 

are assessed with significant / critical needs.
D3 Low Significant

37 Neighbourhoods Failure to engage sufficiently with our residents and communities. D3 Low Significant37 Neighbourhoods Failure to engage sufficiently with our residents and communities. D3 Low Significant

38
Health & Adult Social 

Care

A major health epidemic or pandemic necessitates a change in the way that services are delivered so that statutory 

duties can be maintained.
D4 Low Marginal

39
Health & Adult Social 

Care

Government Initiatives such as Valuing People and Free Personal Care if implemented, may lead to inadequate 

provision of financial support to purchase and provide adequate services.
D5 Low Negligible

40 Environment

Risk of prosecution, corporate manslaughter or Health and Safety Executive investigation through failure to ensure 

effective management and compliance with all Health and Safety requirements particuarly in areas of manual labour 

and management of our responsibilities for partners/ contractors.

E3 Very Low Significant

41 Resources
The Information Management Strategy Action Plan is not implemented in a timely and effective manner, resulting in 

a failure to meet the Council’s business objectives
E4 Very Low Marginal



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



  

 

 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  AUDIT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: TRIENNIAL REVIEW OF SELF INSURANCE FUND 

DATE OF DECISION: 22 SEPTEMBER 2010  

REPORT OF: ROB CARR – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
RESOURCES (ACTING) 

AUTHOR: Name:  Peter Rogers Tel: 023 8083 2835 

 E-mail: peter.rogers@southampton.gov.uk  

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

SUMMARY 

In common with most large organisations’ the Council self insures a proportion of risk 
via an excess or deductible that applies in respect of each and every insurance claim.  
Claims that fall within the excess are met from an internal self insurance fund which 
comprises contributions from services areas as part of their annual insurance 
recharge. 
 
The self insurance fund is subject to independent external review every three years in 
line with good practice.  The purpose of the review is to consider, at a particular point 
in time, whether adequate funds are available to meet current and future liabilities.         
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Audit Committee is asked to:- 

 (i) 
 

Note the content of the summary paper (Appendix 1) and the 
subsequent action taken. 
 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. This report is presented to the Audit Committee in their capacity as the 

member body with responsibility for providing independent assurance to the 
Standards and Governance Committee on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the internal control and reporting environment.  

 

2. The Audit Committee is also responsible for providing assurance to the 
Standards and Governance Committee that appropriate action is being taken 
on risk and internal control related issues identified by the internal and 
external auditors and other review and inspection bodies. 

 

3. 
 

The effective management of the self insurance fund is a key component of 
the Council’s risk financing strategy. 

 

CONSULTATION 

4. The key findings were discussed with the Cabinet Member for Resources 
and Workforce Planning.     

 

Agenda Item 7



 2

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. The potential estimated surplus provided opportunity for a range of options to 
be considered subject to various caveats detailed in the full report and 
recognising the inherent uncertainty associated with insurance together with 
the aim of, wherever possible, minimising year on year fluctuations in 
insurance recharges to service areas.  

DETAIL 

6. 
 
 
 

The review of the self insurance fund was undertaken by Marsh Risk 
Consulting, a specialist actuarial consultancy, who are part of Marsh Limited 
(the Council’s appointed risk and insurance advisors). 

 

 

7. The final report was issued by Marsh on 9th August 2010.  Appendix 1 is a 
summary paper setting out the Scope, Background, Key Findings and 
Comment.   

 

8. The key findings were discussed with the Cabinet Members for Resources 
and Workforce Planning.  The recommendation to Council will be that the 
insurance fund contribution for 2011-12 will be reduced by £500,000 and this 
will be reflected in the budget to be considered in February.  The recharges 
for 2012-13 and 2013-14 will also remain at this reduced contribution level.  
The position of the fund will then be reviewed following the outcome of the 
next triennial fund review.  

 

9. The agreed actions reflect comments in the full report whereby it was 
“recommended that Southampton City Council maintain an additional buffer 
amount in the fund, over and above the total outstanding liability, to allow for 
unexpected events, worse than anticipated deterioration in the current 
reserves and higher than anticipated future losses (both in frequency and 
cost). The extent of such a buffer depends on Southampton City Council’s 
attitude to risk”. 

 

10. The position of the self insurance fund position will continue to be reviewed 
by the Risk and Assurance Manager on a monthly basis. If, at any point, it 
becomes evident that a shortfall of funds could potentially occur then the 
matter would be referred immediately to the Executive Director of 
Resources.  In practice, however, any significant deterioration in the fund 
position is likely to occur over a period of time and would therefore provide 
opportunity for appropriate action to be identified.    

 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Capital  
11. None 
Revenue 
12. None 
Property 
13. No specific property implications have been identified in this report. 
Other 
14. None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 3

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  
15. The Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2003 require the Council to adopt Good Governance arrangements in respect 
of the discharge of its functions. The above arrangements are intended to 
meet those responsibilities. 

Other Legal Implications:  
 
16. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

17. None 
 

 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Southampton City Council – Fund Evaluation Summary Paper 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: Internal Audit, Risk and 
Assurance Office, North Block 
Basement, Civic Centre       

 E-mail: peter.rogers@southampton.gov.uk 

FORWARD PLAN No:  N/A KEY DECISION? 

N/A 

  

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: 

NOT APPLICABLE 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



      

Registered in England Number: 1507274, Registered Office: 1 Tower Place West, Tower Place, London EC3R 5BU 

Marsh Ltd is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for insurance mediation activities only. 
Marsh Ltd conducts its general insurance activities on terms that are set out in the document "Our Business Principles and Practices". 
This may be viewed on our website http://www.marsh.co.uk/aboutMarsh/principles.html 

 

Southampton City Council - Fund Evaluation 

Scope 

This paper summarises the analysis and results of the evaluation into the adequacy of the 

existing funding provisions for the historical self-insured retention as at 31st March 2010 by 

the Risk Consulting Practice of Marsh.  The purpose of the evaluation was to provide an 

ultimate forecast of retained claims for the years 1997/98 to 2009/10 as well as a forecast 

for the current 2010/11 policy period.  The analysis covered: 

 

§ Employers’ Liability (EL) 

§ Public Liability (PL) 

§ Property Damage (PD) 

§ Computer and Contents (C & C) 

 

Background 

In common with most large organisations, the Council self-insures a proportion of risk with 

all liability and property claims settled below £125k and £40k respectively being met from an 

internal insurance fund (the “Fund”).  The Fund comprises contributions from all Directorates 

which are reviewed annually and are based on factors such as exposure (i.e. employee 

numbers, nature of operations, asset values), claims experience, outstanding liabilities and 

other external factors that may impact on future claims experience (i.e. case law, changes in 

legislation).     

 

For each and every claim received the Council’s insurers allocate a ‘reserve’ which an 

estimate of the potential cost of the claim.  Each individual claim reserve figure is reviewed 

periodically as and when further information becomes available regarding the merits of the 

claimants case for example, extent of injury, value of loss etc.  Liability claims represent the 

vast majority of the total outstanding claims reserve figure and such claims will only be paid 

where it is deemed that the Council has been negligent and is legally liable to pay 

compensation. 

 

The Fund position is therefore fluid as claims are repudiated or settled, the reserves on 

individual claims amended and new claims received on an ongoing basis.     

 

The review provides a ‘snapshot’ as to whether the Fund balance as at 31st March 2010 

would be adequate to cover all known claims and any future claims (i.e. those that have 

been ‘incurred but not reported’) with an incident date occurring on or before 31st March 

2010.  The review forecasts the ultimate cost of all claims over the period, less the claims 

paid to date to identify the required reserve for claims outstanding – this figure is then 

compared to the Fund balance.   

 

Appendix 1



 

Page 2 

 

Marsh 

 

 

Key Findings 

The Fund balance as at 31st March 2010 was £6.08m.  Based on the claims data supplied 

provided by the Council, methods, assumptions, limitations and caveats set out in the full 

report the ultimate estimated value of outstanding liabilities for 1997/98 to 2009/10 is 

£4.33m.  The expected value of claims compared with the Fund balance figure therefore 

provides a potential estimated surplus of £2.48m.  The potential surplus is a best estimate.    

 

This compares with the position at the last fund audit in 2007 where there was an estimated 

surplus of £904,000 (this covered period 31st March 1992 to 31st March 2007). 

 

It is important to note that analysis of asbestos related exposure or claims is outside the 

scope of this exercise due to the complex nature of the analysis required.  The figures also 

exclude any allowance or analysis of claims with an incident date of prior to 1st April 1992.  

Prior to this date claims were met in full by insurers i.e. there was no excess on claims and 

therefore no requirement for an internal insurance Fund.  The local authority insurance 

market changed considerably in 1992 following the demise of Municipal Mutual Insurance 

who had previous insured the vast majority of local authorities.    

 

Although complex statistical modelling processes have been used, insurance is inherently 

uncertain therefore no estimation model will be perfect.  The report has however been 

carried out in accordance with generally accepted actuarial techniques.   

 

Comment 

The purpose of the Fund is to ensure that adequate funds are available to meet both current 

and future insurance liabilities.  The funding strategy seeks to smooth the cost of risk to the 

Council and individual service areas and, wherever possible to minimise year on year 

fluctuations in costs.  

 

It is not possible to consistently maintain the optimum level of funding at all times due to the 

fluid nature of the Fund and the inherent element of uncertainty associated with insurance.       

 

The report confirms that the position of the Fund has a potential surplus of £2.48m, an 

increase from the £0.904m surplus in 2007 although this figure is subject to the assumptions 

and limitations outlined in the full report. 

 

The review was based on a ‘snapshot’ of the position as at 31st March 2010 therefore any 

potential surplus or deficit is hypothetical as the Fund operates on an ongoing basis rather 

than by operating by individual policy year.  This is in line with good practice. 

 



 1

DECISION-MAKER:  AUDIT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: AUDIT COMMISSION: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
REPORT 2009/10 

DATE OF DECISION: 22 SEPTEMBER 2010 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR  

AUTHOR: Name:  Neil Pitman Tel: 023 8083 4616 

 E-mail: Neil.pitman@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

SUMMARY 

The Annual Governance Report summarises the findings from the 2009/10 audit 
which is substantially complete. It includes the messages arising from the audit of the 
Council’s financial statements and the results of the work undertaken to assess how 
well the Council uses and manages their resources to deliver value for money. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Audit Committee notes the Audit Commission’s reports as 
attached. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference require it to be satisfied and 
provide assurance to the Standards and Governance Committee that 
appropriate action is being taken on risk and internal control related issues 
identified by the external auditors.  Specifically, the Committee has 
responsibility for oversight of the reports of external audit. 

CONSULTATION 

2. The reports, as attached, have been discussed and agreed with the 
appropriate officers. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

3. None 

DETAIL 

4. The following Audit Commission reports are attached for consideration in the 
appendix: 

• Annual Governance Report 2009/10 

• Supplementary Papers 

The external auditor will be in attendance at the Committee meeting to 
answer any questions. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Agenda Item 8



 2

Capital  

5. None 

Revenue 

6. None 

Property 

7. None 

Other 

8. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

9. The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are 
set out in the Local Government Act 1999. 

Other Legal Implications:  

10. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

11. None 
 



 3

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Audit Commission: DRAFT Annual Governance Report 2009/10 

2. Supplementary Papers 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: Internal Audit Office, North Block 
Basement, Civic Centre 

 E-mail: Neil.pitman@southampton.gov.uk 

FORWARD PLAN No:       n/a KEY DECISION? 

 n/a 

  

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: N/A 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 
R

e
p

o
rt

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

c
il

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

A
u

d
it

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

Appendix 1



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

2O
u

tl
in

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

•
W

h
a

t 
w

e
 d

o
 a

n
d

 w
h

y
?

•
K

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s

•
W

h
a

t 
d

id
 w

e
 f
in

d
 a

t 
S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il?

–
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

–
V

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

M
o
n
e
y

•
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

•
W

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
o

?

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ts
 1

-6



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

3W
h

a
t 

w
e

 d
o

 a
n

d
 w

h
y

?

•
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
’
o

p
in

io
n

•
T

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
m

e
a
n
s
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

it
s
 s

te
w

a
rd

s
h
ip

 o
f 
p
u
b
lic

 f
u
n
d
s
. 

It
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
y
o
u
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
y
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 b

e
fo

re
 y

o
u
 a

d
o
p
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

•
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
•

I 
a
m

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
c
id

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
I 
h
a
v
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 m

y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 m

y
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

s
c
o
re

d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

4K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

•
U

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

?

(*
S

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 p

e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
H

R
A

h
e
a
ti
n
g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
)

Y
e

s
*

•
F

re
e

 f
ro

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

rr
o

r?
 

Y
e

s
*

•
A

d
e

q
u

a
te

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t?

 
Y

e
s

**
(*

* 
E

x
c
e
p
t 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

H
R

A
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
)

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y

•
A

d
e

q
u

a
te

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

?
 

Y
e
s



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

5

W
h

a
t 

d
o

e
s

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

d
o

?
•

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 r
a
is

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
fo

re
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

•
T

a
k
e
 n

o
te

 o
f 
th

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 (
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
2
).

 

•
B

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 

a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 b
e

in
g

 g
iv

e
n

 (
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 
3

)

•
A

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
f 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
fo

re
 I
 

is
s
u
e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 (

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

4
).

•
A

g
re

e
 y

o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 (
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 

6
).



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

6W
h

a
t 

d
id

 w
e
 f

in
d

 a
t 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
?

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 -
s

u
m

m
a

ry

•
W

e
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

to
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 o

r 
b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 (
s
e

e
 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
1

).

•
W

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

m
a

d
e

 (
s
e

e
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 

2
).

•
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 
3

 s
u

m
m

a
ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
.

•
W

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 e

x
p

la
in

 t
h

e
m

 l
a

te
r 

in
 t

h
is

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

7W
h

a
t 

d
id

 w
e
 f

in
d

 a
t 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
?

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 –
W

h
a

t 
k
e

y
 r

is
k
s
 d

id
 w

e
 p

la
n

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
?

R
is

k
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
in

io
n

 p
la

n
:

•
W

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 I
F

R
IC

1
2
 (

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
s
) 

to
 i
ts

 
P

F
I
a

n
d

 s
im

ila
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

•
W

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
ta

x
a

ti
o

n

•
W

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
n
io

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 p

a
y
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

•
W

h
e
th

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
t 
lia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
q
u
a
l 
p
a
y
 c

la
im

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s

•
W

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
 r

a
is

e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

A
N

D

•
O

th
e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

8IF
R

IC
1
2
 (

S
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
s
) 

P
F

Is
a
n

d
 

s
im

il
a
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 o

f 
it
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 n
e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 i
ts

 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

.

B
u
t

•
T

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
F

I
u

n
it
a
ry

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
re

 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s

to
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

ra
te

 o
f 
re

tu
rn

 (
s
e
e
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
2
 –

it
e
m

 2
 i
n
 t
a
b
le

 1
 a

n
d
 i
te

m
 2

 i
n
 t
a
b
le

 2
)

•
A

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 
fu

tu
re

 o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 P

F
I
th

a
t 
is

 i
n
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 S

o
R

P
(s

e
e
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
2
 -

it
e
m

 3
 i
n
 t
a
b
le

 2
)

•
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
B

U
P

A
 C

a
re

 H
o
m

e
s
 u

n
it
a
ry

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 (

s
e
e
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
2

–
it
e
m

 4
 i
n
 

ta
b

le
 2

)



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

9A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

lo
c

a
l 
ta

x
a

ti
o

n

•
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

re
s
ta

te
d
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
s
.

•
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
; 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 s

u
m

m
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 c

o
s
ts

, 
a

n
d

 N
N

D
R

a
rr

e
a
rs

 (
s
e
e
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

2
 –

it
e
m

 5
 i
n
 t

a
b
le

 1
)



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
0S
e

n
io

r 
e

m
p

lo
y

e
e

s
 p

a
y

 a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts

S
e

n
io

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
S

o
R

P
)



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
1P
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

t 
li
a
b

il
it

ie
s

E
q

u
a

l 
p

a
y
 c

la
im

s
 -

(b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
in

io
n

 i
s
 g

iv
e

n
)

•
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

‘e
q

u
a

l 
p

a
y
 c

la
im

s
’;
 

•
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t.

R
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s

•
W

e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
2R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
s
u

e
s

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 e

n
s
u

re
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
iv

e
 e

rr
o

rs
 w

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
p

e
a

te
d

.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
3O

th
e
r 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

•
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 n

e
w

 r
is

k
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 b
e
c
a
m

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
;

•
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
2
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 a

ll 
o
f 
th

e
 n

o
n
-t

ri
v
ia

l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

o
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

;

•
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
3
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 s

ti
ll 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

e
fo

re
 

th
e
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
; 

a
n
d
 

•
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

in
o
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
4Im

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
w

e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 i

n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l

H
e
a
ti

n
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 (

T
e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

)
1

E
le

c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 

o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 f
o
r 

h
e
a
ti
n
g
 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
.

‘E
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

’
a

n
d

 ‘
T

e
n

a
n

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
’
a
re

 m
a

te
ri
a

l 
e

n
tr

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t

T
e

s
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 s

h
o

w
n

:

•
A

n
 e

rr
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

re
c
o
rd

s
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

;

•
T

h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 e
rr

o
r/

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 i
s
 £

7
6
5
,5

0
0
; 

•
In

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

rs
; 

•
P

o
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

r 
s
u
rv

e
y
s
; 
a
n
d
 

•
T

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 g

a
s
 m

e
te

rs
.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
5Im

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
w

e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 i

n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l

H
e
a
ti

n
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 (

T
e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

)
2

N
e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
:

•
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
g
re

e
 t
o
 a

d
ju

s
t 
th

e
 e

rr
o
r 

a
n
d
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
I 
h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

u
t 

th
a
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 

d
e
c
lin

e
d
 t
o
 a

m
e
n
d
, 
o
r 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

n
o
t 
d
o
in

g
 s

o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
;

•
A

w
a
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
a
 p

e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 b

e
fo

re
 g

iv
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

in
io

n
;

•
D

A
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

le
c
to

r 
b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
d
; 

•
D

A
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

; 
a
n
d

•
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 e

rr
o
rs

 
c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
6W

h
a
t 

d
id

 w
e
 f

in
d

 a
t 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 –

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
?

•
P

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 V
F

M
 c

ri
te

ri
o

n
;

•
T

h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
5

;

•
R

e
lia

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

la
c
e

d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a

l 
ri
s
k
 w

o
rk

;

•
I 
w

ill
 g

iv
e

 a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
V

F
M

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
7R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

R
e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 m

e
te

rs
 i
n

 d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
:

•
R

1
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

rs
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 m

o
re

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

. 

•
R

2
 C

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

rs
; 

a
n
d

•
R

3
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
n
 m

e
te

r 
re

c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

a
s
t 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

R
e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
g

a
s
 m

e
te

rs
 i

n
 d

w
e
ll
in

g
s
:

•
R

4
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 
g
a
s
 m

e
te

rs
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 s
im

ila
r 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
.



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
8A
u

d
it

 F
e

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 &

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

•
I 
c
a
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 w
it
h

in
 m

y
 i
n

it
ia

l 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
.

•
I 
w

ill
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 t

h
e
 f

e
e
 

fo
r 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c
e

 

w
it
h

 e
le

c
to

rs
 –

to
ta

lli
n

g
 £

1
8

,2
5

0
  

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
. 

•
I 
c
a
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

a
t 
I 
h
a
v
e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
’s

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

n
 

in
te

g
ri
ty

, 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

8
4

,6
4

0
8

4
,6

4
0

v
fm

3
2
5
,5

0
0

3
2
5
,5

0
0

A
u

d
it

T
o

ta
l

1
,8

0
0

1
,8

0
0

W
G

A

2
3
9
,0

6
0

2
3
9
,0

6
0

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

P
la

n
 (

£
)

A
c
tu

a
l 
(£

)



A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

1
9W

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
o

 ?

•
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 r
a
is

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
fo

re
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

•
T

a
k
e
 n

o
te

 o
f 
th

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 (
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
2
).

 

•
N

o
te

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 (

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

3
).

•
A

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
f 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
e
fo

re
 

I 
is

s
u
e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 (

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

4
).

•
A

g
re

e
 y

o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 (
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 

6
).



This page is intentionally left blank



Supplementary
Papers
To accompany the presentation of the Annual 
Governance Report 

Southampton Council

Audit 2009/10 

Date

Appendix 2



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission 
explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. Reports prepared by 
appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors accept no 
responsibility to: 

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

any third party.

Contents

Supplement 1 – Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Southampton 
Council 3

Supplement 2 – Adjusted amendments to the accounts 6

Supplement 3 – Outstanding work that has still to be completed 11

Supplement 4 – Draft letter of representation 12

Supplement 5 – Value for money criteria 16

Supplement 6 – Action plan 17



Supplement 1 – Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Southampton Council

3   Southampton Council 

Supplement 1 – Independent 
auditor’s report to the Members of 
Southampton Council 

Opinion on the accounting statements 

I have audited the Authority accounting statements and related notes of Southampton City 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2010 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The 
accounting statements comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of 
Movement on the General Fund Balance, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Total 
Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account, the 
Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account, the Collection Fund and the related 
notes. These accounting statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out 
in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 

This report is made solely to the members of Southampton City Council in accordance with 
Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 49 
of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies published by the Audit 
Commission in April 2008. 

Respective responsibilities of the Interim Director of Resources and auditor 

The Interim Director of Resources’ responsibilities for preparing the accounting statements in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice is 
set out in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts. 

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements in accordance with relevant legal and 
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).  

I report to you my opinion as to whether the accounting statements give a true and fair view, in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of 
the financial position of the Authority and its income and expenditure for the year.  

I review whether the governance statement reflects compliance with ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007. I 
report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by CIPFA/SOLACE or if the 
statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit of 
the accounting statements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether the 
governance statement covers all risks and controls. Neither am I required to form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control 
procedures. 



Supplement 1 – Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Southampton Council

  4

I read other information published with the accounting statements, and consider whether it is 
consistent with the audited accounting statements. This other information comprises the 
Explanatory Foreword. I consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any 
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounting statements. My 
responsibilities do not extend to any other information. 

Basis of audit opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, 
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements and related 
notes. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the 
Authority in the preparation of the accounting statements and related notes, and of whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed. 

I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I 
considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable 
assurance that the accounting statements and related notes are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming my opinion I 
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounting 
statements and related notes. 

Opinion

In my opinion the Authority’s accounting statements give a true and fair view, in accordance 
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of the 
financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2010 and its income and expenditure for the 
year then ended. 

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources

Authority’s Responsibilities 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance and regularly to review the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities 

I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements have 
been made by the Authority for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires me to report 
to you my conclusion in relation to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria for 
principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in May 2008 and 
updated in October 2009. I report if significant matters have come to my attention which 
prevent me from concluding that the Authority has made such proper arrangements. I am not 
required to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 



Supplement 1 – Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Southampton Council

5   Southampton Council 

Conclusion

I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having regard to 
the criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in 
May 2008 and updated in October 2009, and the supporting guidance, I am satisfied that, in all 
significant respects, Southampton City Council made proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2010.

Certificate

The audit cannot be formally concluded and an audit certificate issued until I have completed 
my consideration of matters that have been brought to my attention by local authority electors. 
I am satisfied that these matters do not have a material effect on the on the financial 
statements.

K. L. Handy 
Officer of the Audit Commission 

Collins House, 
Bishopstoke Road,  
Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 6AD 

      Date       September 2010 



Supplement 2 – Adjusted amendments to the accounts

  6

Supplement 2 – Adjusted 
amendments to the accounts 

I identified the following misstatements during my audit and managers have made the necessary 
adjustments. I bring them to your attention to assist you in fulfilling your governance 
responsibilities.

Table 1 Adjusted amendments to prime statements 

I&E Account, 
SMGFB,  HRA, 
SMHRAB  or 
Collection fund

Balance sheet 

Adjusted
misstatements

Nature of adjustment Dr
£000s

Cr
£000s

Dr
£000s

Cr
£000s

1) Provisions Provision added for equal 
pay claims.  The potential 
settlement figure was not 
available until after the draft 
accounts were prepared.. 

Dr I&E Account 

Cr Provisions

Dr Capital Adjustment 
Account

Cr SMGFB 

TBA

TBA

TBA

TBA

2) I&E Account, 
SMGFB & Balance 
Sheet

The analysis of unitary 
payment re PFI Schools 
has been amended to more 
accurately reflect the 
composition of the 
payments and changes to 
the internal rate of return 
used.

Net charge to I&E 

SMGFB net credit 

106

106



Supplement 2 – Adjusted amendments to the accounts

7   Southampton Council 

I&E Account, 
SMGFB,  HRA, 
SMHRAB  or 
Collection fund

Balance sheet 

Change to short term 
finance creditors  

Change in long term 
finance creditors 

Revaluation reserve 

Capital Adjustment
Account

127

838

711

254

3) I&E Account Removal of capital grants 
and contributions not 
specific to a service from 
LA Housing service income 
to comply with the SoRP:  

Dr LA Housing (HRA) 

Cr Capital grants not 
relating to specific services 

2,048

2,048

4) Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 

Amended the proportion of 
FRS17 pension costs 
allocated to the HRA, 
because it had been 
overstated.

Dr HRA supervision & 
maintenance

Cr HRA I&E Account:  

- Pensions interest costs 
and expected return on 
assets

257

912

5) Collection fund The correction of previous 
years; Ctax summons and 
liability costs, and NNDR 
arrears.

Dr Increase debtors  

Cr General fund balance 

Cr Collection fund balance 

1,649

61

1,588



Supplement 2 – Adjusted amendments to the accounts

  8

Table 2 Adjustments to the explanatory foreword, Accounting 
policies and the notes to the core statements 

Adjusted misstatements Nature of adjustment Adjustment to note - £000s 

1) Explanatory foreword -
general fund capital summary 
(disclosure) 

Amendment to the note to 
reflect that general fund capital 
spend in 2009/10 totalled 
£54.5m rather than the total 
capital spend of £98.8m 

44,300

2) Note 3 - Future obligations 
re Schools PFI 

Correction of the analysis of 
future Schools PFI obligations 
between liabilities, interest and 
service charges in each future 
financial year. This is to more 
accurately reflect the 
composition of these future 
payments and changes to the 
internal rate of return. 

Note 3 has been restated and 
in total the changes amount to: 

- Liability 

- Interest

- Service charges
+584

+18,717

- 19,301 

3) Note 3  - Future 
obligations for Street Lighting 
PFI

Additional disclosure of future 
obligations in respect of the 
Street lighting PFI that came 
into effect from 1 April 2010 in 
order to comply with the 
SoRP.

These obligations are 
analysed by year over the 
headings of liabilities, interest 
and service charges. In total 
they amount to: 

- Liability 

- Interest 

- Service charges 

+25,819

+42,452

+34,513

4) Note 3 - Payments made 
in 2009/10 re BUPA Care 
Homes

Correction of the analysis of 
payments made in 2009/10 to 
reflect the actual composition 
of the payments made: 



Supplement 2 – Adjusted amendments to the accounts

9   Southampton Council 

Adjusted misstatements Nature of adjustment Adjustment to note - £000s 

- Liability

- Service charges -2,278
+2,278

5) Investment properties - 
note 8 

A note has been added to the 
core statements to provide an 
analysis of the investment 
properties impairment and 
income disclosed in the 
Income and Expenditure 
Account.

- Income 

- Expenditure net of 
impairments

+6,694

+8,841

6) Members allowances - 
note 9 

Corrected the allowances 
disclosed to reflect the level of 
payments made and SoRP 
disclosure requirements: 

2009/10

2008/09 -96

-73

6) Note to the Statement of 
Movement in HRA Balance 
(SMHRAB)

Amended the proportion of 
FRS17 pension costs 
allocated to the HRA, because 
it had been overstated.  

Reduce net charges for 
retirement benefits in 
accordance with FRS17 

Reduce employers 
contribution and pensions 
payable direct to pensioners 

NB: 2008/9 comparatives will 
also be changed 

-1,566

-911

7) HRA pensions  - note 12 to 
the HRA 

Reduction in pension costs 
disclosed to reflect the correct 
proportion that is chargeable 
to the HRA. 

-Current service costs 
- Past service costs 

-Interest cost 

-Expected return on assets 

-640
-13

-1624

+712



Supplement 2 – Adjusted amendments to the accounts

  10

Adjusted misstatements Nature of adjustment Adjustment to note - £000s 

-Movement on the pension 
reserve

-Charge to the HRA 

NB:2008/09 comparatives will 
also be changed 

+654

-911

8) Post balance sheet events 
(PBSE) -note 34 

Additional PBSEs have been 
entered in respect of : 

- the change in the basis for 
estimation of future liabilities 
pension liabilities, to the 
'Consumer Price Index' rather 
than the 'Retail Price Index' 
from 2010/11. The change 
results in a reduction in 
liabilities of between 8% - 10% 
of the liability 

- The awarding of the 
Highways PPP contract with 
an estimated  total cost over 
10 years of £100m

- The awarding of the contract 
for Leisure Services with an 
estimated total over 15 years 
of £15m

- Cancellation of the Building 
Schools for the Future 
programme 

The capital cost disclosed in 
the PBSE in relation to Street 
Lighting PFI has been 
amended from £28.5m to 
£25.8m.

-66,000 to -83,000 

+100,000

+15,000

N/A

-2,700



Supplement 3 – Outstanding work that has still to be completed

11   Southampton Council 

Supplement 3 – Outstanding 
work that has still to be 
completed

Our work in relation to the Council's financial statements is complete except for the areas 
noted below in table 3. This work will be completed in advance of the Audit Committee meeting 
on 22 September 2010, and will be finished before the opinion is issued. 

Table 3 

Area to test 

I&E Account 

PFI, PPP & Long term contracts 

Provisions

Contingent liabilities 

Financial instruments 

Group accounts 

Peer review in respect of HRA heating charges 



Supplement 4 – Draft letter of representation

  12

Supplement 4 – Draft letter of 
representation

Kate Handy 
Audit Commission 
Collins House 
Bishopstoke Road 
Eastleigh
SO50 6AD 

      September 2010 

Southampton City Council - Audit for the year ended 31 March 2010 

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate enquiries of officers 
and members of Southampton City Council the following representations given to you in 
connection with your audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2010.

Compliance with the statutory authorities 

I acknowledge my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for preparing the 
financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended Practice which gives a true and fair view 
of the financial position and financial performance of the Council and for making accurate 
representations to you.

Uncorrected misstatements 

I confirm that I believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statements are not material 
to the financial statements. These misstatements have been discussed with those charged 
with governance within the Council and the reasons for not correcting these items are as 
follows.

I can confirm that following a sample check (61 records) of the data associated with the 
metering of electricity, the Council has identified one definite error and a number of cases (17) 
that require further investigation to confirm their designation out of the sample population.  

It is my view based on the sample check that this does not represent a material error within the 
accounts; the actual error rate (1 meter out of the sample of 61) is 1.6%, there is an 
‘uncertainty’ around the designation of 17 meters – 27.9% - with the information for the 
remaining meters included with the sample, which account for 70.5% of the sample, found to 
be correct. 

The materiality level for the Housing Revenue Account is £1.1M. Through extrapolating the 
results of the sample data, I am content that the error and uncertainties found would not 
equate to a sum which would breach the £1.1M materiality level. 



Supplement 4 – Draft letter of representation

13   Southampton Council 

I am also confident that it is statistically unlikely that the 17 meters around which there is an 
uncertainty would all be incorrectly designated.  

At this stage it is not possible to make any amendments to the financial statements until 
significant further work is undertaken to verify the integrity of the data. It would also not be 
appropriate to amend the accounts based on extrapolating the sample results. 

I can confirm that the results of this work and any subsequent impact on the charges to tenants 
and leaseholders will be reported fully to all appropriate stakeholders. 

Supporting records 

All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and 
all the transactions undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected and recorded in 
the accounting records. All other records and related information, including minutes of all 
Council, Cabinet and other Committee meetings, have been made available to you. 

Irregularities 

I acknowledge my responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control systems 
to prevent and detect fraud or error. 

There have been no: 

irregularities involving management or employees who have significant roles in the system 
of internal accounting control; 

irregularities involving other employees that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements; or

communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with, or deficiencies 
on, financial reporting practices which could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

I also confirm that I have disclosed: 

my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either management, employees who 
have significant roles in internal control or others where fraud could have a material effect 
on the financial statements; and 

my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators 
or others. 

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice 

There are no instances of non-compliance with laws, regulations and codes of practice, likely 
to have a significant effect on the finances or operations of the Council. 

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no 
non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

Fair Values 

I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions within the financial statements. For 
these assumptions, I confirm: 

the appropriateness of the measurement method; 



Supplement 4 – Draft letter of representation

  14

the basis used by management is reasonable and is consistent with the financial reporting 
framework;

the completeness and appropriateness under the financial reporting framework; and  

if subsequent events require adjustment to the fair value measurement they have been 
made.

Assets

The following have been properly recorded and, where appropriate, adequately disclosed in 
the financial statements: 

losses arising from sale & purchase commitments; 

agreements & options to buy back assets previously sold; and 

assets pledged as collateral. 

Compensating arrangements 

There are no formal or informal compensating balancing arrangements with any of our cash 
and investment accounts. Except as disclosed in notes 25 to 28 of the financial statements we 
have no lines of credit arrangements. 

Contingent liabilities 

There are no other contingent liabilities, other than those that have been properly recorded and 
disclosed in the financial statements. In particular: 

there is no significant pending or threatened litigation, other than those already disclosed 
in the financial statements;  

there are no material commitments or contractual issues, other than those already 
disclosed in the financial statements; and 

no financial guarantees have been given to third parties. 

Related party transactions 

I confirm the completeness of the information disclosed regarding the identification of related 
parties.

The identity of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have been properly 
recorded and where appropriate, adequately disclosed in the financial statements 

Post balance sheet events 

Since the date of approval of the financial statements by the Standards and Governance 
Committee, no additional significant post balance sheet events have occurred which would 
require additional adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 

The Council has no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.  

Signed on behalf of Southampton City Council 

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Standards and Governance 
Committee on 23 September 2010. 



Supplement 4 – Draft letter of representation

15   Southampton Council 

Signed:                                                       

Name:  Mr. R Carr                          

Position: Interim Executive Director of Resources                 
Date:     September 2010 



Supplement 5 – Value for money criteria

  16

Supplement 5 – Value for money 
criteria
KLOE Met

Managing finances 

Planning for financial health Yes

Understanding costs and achieving efficiencies Yes

Financial reporting Yes

Governing the business 

Commissioning and procurement Yes

Use of information Yes

Good governance Yes

Risk management and internal control Yes

Managing resources 

Natural resources N/A

Strategic asset management Yes

Workforce Yes



E
rr

o
r!

 N
o

 t
e

x
t 

o
f 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 s

ty
le

 i
n

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
t.

1
7

 
  

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
6

 –
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
P

a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 

1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e

d
 

3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

D
a

te

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 -
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
e

le
c

tr
ic

it
y
 m

e
te

rs
 i

n
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s

 

R
1

 R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 

m
e

te
rs

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

 a
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 a
n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
 

3

R
2

 C
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 

m
e

te
rs

 
3

R
3

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 
m

e
te

r 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
a

s
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 

te
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

3

R
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
g

a
s

 m
e

te
rs

 i
n

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s
 

R
4

 R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
g

a
s
 m

e
te

rs
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 i
f 

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

im
ila

r 
3



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
6

 –
 A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

  
1

8

P
a

g
e

n
o

.
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e

d
 

3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

D
a

te

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 h
o
w

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 



Error! No text of specified style in document.

19   Southampton Council 

The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue services 
means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for taxpayers, auditing the 
£200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and make 
practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, Braille, audio or in a language 
other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

DECISION-MAKER:  AUDIT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT: STATUS OF WORK 

AUGUST 2010 

DATE OF DECISION: 22 SEPTEMBER 2010 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR  

AUTHOR: Name:  Neil Pitman Tel: 023 8083 4616 

 E-mail: Neil.pitman@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

Confidential Appendix 2 attached to this report is exempt from publication under 
Categories 2 and 7 of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information 
Procedure Rules.  The information contained therein is exempt as it relates to ongoing 
investigations and is likely to reveal the identities of individuals.  Having applied the 
public interest test it is not appropriate to disclose this information.  The interests of 
any parties involved in these investigations could be jeopardised by the release of the 
information. 

 

SUMMARY 

Under the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006, the Council 
is responsible for:  

• ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that it has a 
sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of functions 
and includes arrangements for the management of risk; and 

• maintaining an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit of its accounting 
records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper internal 
audit practices. 

In accordance with proper internal audit practices and the Internal Audit Strategy, the 
Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide a written status report to the Audit 
Committee, summarising: 

• progress in implementing the audit plan; 

• internal audit reviews in progress; 

• audit opinion on all internal audit reviews completed since the last report and 
executive summaries of published reports where critical weaknesses or 
unacceptable levels of risk were identified; 

• the status of ‘live’ reports, i.e. those where internal audit work is completed and 
actions are planned to improve the framework of governance, risk management and 
management control; and 

• internal audit reviews closed since the last report. 

The appendix summarises the activities of internal audit for the period ending 10th 
August 2010. 

Agenda Item 10



 2

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Audit Committee notes the Internal Audit Status of Work 
report for the period ending 10th August 2010 as attached. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. In accordance with proper internal audit practices and the Internal Audit 
Strategy, the Audit Committee is required to receive the Chief Internal 
Auditor’s status report. 

CONSULTATION 

2. The Status of Work report for the period ending 10th August 2010 has been 
received by the Chief Officers’ Management Team. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

3. None 

DETAIL 

4. The status report for the period ending 10th August 2010 is attached for 
consideration in the appendix. 

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

5. None 

Revenue 

6. None 

Property 

7. None 

Other 

8. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

9. The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 require 
the Council to ‘maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of 
its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with 
the proper practices in relation to internal control’. 

Other Legal Implications: 

10. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

11. None 
 



 3

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Internal Audit: Status of Work Report period ending 10th August 2010 

2. Internal Audit: Status of Work Report period ending 10th August 2010 – 
Confidential Addendum 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Background Documents 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the 
Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if 
applicable) 

1. None  

Background documents available for inspection at: Internal Audit Office, North Block 
Basement, Civic Centre 

 E-mail: Neil.pitman@southampton.gov.uk 

FORWARD PLAN No:        KEY DECISION? 
 

n/a  

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: n/a 

      
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



SUBJECT: Internal Audit: Status of Work  

MEETING: Audit Committee 

DATE OF MEETING: 22 September 2010 

REPORT OF: Chief Internal Auditor  

REPORT DATE: August 2010 

 
 
1 Opinion definitions 

Opinion Framework of governance, risk management and management control 

Substantial assurance [G] A sound framework in place that is operating effectively.  Some immaterial evidence of inconsistent application. 

Adequate Assurance [A1] Basically a sound framework in place but with repeated evidence of inconsistent application. 

Limited assurance [A2] Critical weakness(es) identified within the framework or significant evidence of inconsistent application. 

No assurance [R] Fundamental weaknesses have been identified or the framework is ineffective or absent. 

Closed [X] Management has confirmed that all identified framework weaknesses have been appropriately addressed. 

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 2 of 19 

2 Status of ‘live’ reports: 

Audit title Report 
date 

Audit Sponsor Directorate Opinion Original 
actions 

Actions 
outstanding 

 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 (of which are ‘high’ 

priority) 

Fleet Transport 
 

08/04/08 Executive Director of 
Environment 

Environment G G G G G G X 11 (0) 0 

Licensing 16/04/08 Chief Executive Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

G G G G G G X 13 (3) 0 

Across Schools Thematic 
Reviews – Security 
 

16/06/08 Executive Director 
Children’s Services and 
Learning 

Children’s 
Services and 
Learning 

A G G G G G G 8 (4) 1 (0) 

Affordable Housing 
 

14/08/08 Executive Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Neighbourhoods G G G G G G X 12 (4) 0 

Woodmill 26/03/09 Executive Director of 
Neighbourhoods, 
Executive Director of 
Resources 

Neighbourhoods 
and Resources 

 R A G G G X 9 (8) 0 

Computer Installations & 
Operating Systems 

14/05/09 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources   A A2 A2 G X 20 (6) 0 

IS Security Management 14/05/09 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources   A G G G X 13 (3) 0 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 3 of 19 

Audit title Report 
date 

Audit Sponsor Directorate Opinion Original 
actions 

Actions 
outstanding 

 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 (of which are ‘high’ 

priority) 

Registration Services 16/06/09 Executive Director of 
Environment 

Environment   G G G G X 6 (0) 0 

Development Control 

 

19/06/09 Executive Director of 
Environment 

Environment   G G G G X 1 (1) 0 

Debtors 

 

30/06/09 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources   G G G G X 5 (1) 0 

Open Spaces and Street 
Cleansing 

01/07/09 Executive Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Neighbourhoods   A G G G X 9 (2) 0 

School PFI Contract 
Management 

 

03/07/09 Executive Director, 
Children Services and 
Learning 

Children Services 
and Learning 

  A A1 A1 A1 G 8 (1) 1 (0) 

Contract Management 07/07/09 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources   A G G G X 9 (1) 0 

Emergency Home 
Closures 

28/07/09 Director of Health and 
Community Care 

Communities 
Health and Care 

  A G G G X 5 (1) 0 

CCTV Services 05/01/10 Executive Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Neighbourhoods    G G G G 11 (2) 3 (0) 

Procurement Follow Up 08/02/10 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources     G G G 3 (2) 1 (1) 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 4 of 19 

Audit title Report 
date 

Audit Sponsor Directorate Opinion Original 
actions 

Actions 
outstanding 

 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 (of which are ‘high’ 

priority) 

Accommodation Strategy 
and Flexible Working 

08/02/10 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources     G G X 6 (1) 0 

Adult Learning and 
Disability 

25/02/10 Executive Director of 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 

Health and Adult 
Social Care 

     G G 2 (0) 2 (0) 

Payroll 23/03/10 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources      G G 3 (2) 2 (1) 

Creditors 31/03/10 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources      G G 5 (0) 2 (0) 

Housing Rents Collection 
and Debt Management 

08/04/10 Executive Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Neighbourhoods      G G 8 (1) 1 (0) 

Decent Homes 11/05/10 Executive Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Neighbourhoods      A1 G 7 (1) 6 (0) 

Corporate Governance 
Framework 

12/05/10 Solicitor to the Council Chief Executives      G G 3 (0) 1 (0) 

Pupil Referral Unit 10/06/10 Executive Director, 
Children Services and 
Learning 

Children Services 
and Learning 

      RààààA1 24 (18) 6 (4) 

Risk Management 15/06/10 Executive Director of 
Resources 

Resources       G 3 (0) 3 (0) 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 5 of 19 

Audit title Report 
date 

Audit Sponsor Directorate Opinion Original 
actions 

Actions 
outstanding 

 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 (of which are ‘high’ 

priority) 

Abandoned Vehicles 22/06/10 Executive Director, 
Environment 

Environment       G 5 (0) 0 

Fuel Management and 
Fleet Workshop 

13/07/10 Executive Director, 
Environment 

Executive Director, 
Neighbourhoods 

Environment 

 

Neighbourhoods 

      A2ààààG 14 (6) 3 (1) 

Children’s Trust 
Arrangements for the 
Delivery of the Children’s 
and Young Peoples Plan 

20/07/10 Executive Director, 
Children Services and 
Learning 

Children Services 
and Learning 

      G 2 (0) 2 (0) 

4Social Care Work 26/07/10 Executive Director, 
Children Services and 
Learning 

Children Services 
and Learning 

      A2 6(6) 6 (6) 

Data Management – 
Children Services 

05/08/10 Executive Director, 
Children Services and 
Learning 

Children Services 
and Learning 

      A1 12 (9) 12 (9) 

Safeguarding – Contact 
Scheme 

13/08/10 Executive Director, 
Children Services and 
Learning 

Children Services 
and Learning 

      RààààA1 34 (28) 8 (6) 

 
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 6 of 19 

3 Executive summaries of new reports published where critical weaknesses or unacceptable levels of risk were identified: 

Audit title: Data Management – Children’s Services (05/08/10) 

Original published audit opinion: Adequate Assurance [A1] 

Current audit opinion: Adequate Assurance [A1] 

Executive summary: 

Performance indicators are regularly reported and scrutinised at Children's Services and Learning Management Team meetings. In addition, 
quarterly monitoring is undertaken by the Corporate Policy Team on directorates completing the appropriate fields within CorVu. 

Currently no formal (recorded) monitoring is undertaken of compliance with statutory and non-statutory return deadlines. Informal monitoring is 
undertaken through staff one-to-ones, team meetings and against the Team's Business Plan. 

The definitions/methodology for local and national indicators are not always consistent which can cause confusion as to how the local definition 
should be calculated and may result in inconsistent reporting. This is partly due to the methodology for local indicators not being documented and 
relying on the experience, assumptions and judgement of the Data Analyst to calculate them. 

Due to the relative size of the Children's Data Team there is currently limited formalised arrangements/capacity in place for members of the team to 
shadow/cover colleagues. This can put additional pressure on the team in case of staff shortage because they do not have the specialist/detailed 
knowledge of the other indicators. 

Data quality issues exist within PARIS in relation to the assessment dates and a number of them require amendment by the Data Analyst before the 
performance of the related indictor can be undertaken. In addition, there are a number of reports that do not use automated reporting from the 
various feeder systems. 

Management actions and update: 

An appropriate action plan has been compiled to mitigate identified risks 

 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 7 of 19 

Audit title: Fuel Management and Fleet Workshop (12/07/10) 

Original published audit opinion: Limited assurance [A2] 

Current audit opinion:  Substantial assurance [G] 

Executive summary:  

Following receipt of an anonymous letter regarding working practices within the Fleet Transport Workshop, an internal audit review was 
commissioned by the Head of Waste and Fleet Transport to investigate reported allegations. 

Due to the generic nature of the allegations received the audit review sought to assess the effectiveness of the activities and controls implicated in 
the correspondence designed to mitigate the following risks: 

• Unauthorised access of fuel from the fuel pump; 
• Private work within the workshop 
• Unauthorised use of stock from the workshop store 

Unauthorised access of fuel from the fuel pump  

The fuel management system records details of fuel transactions accessed from the pump. Fuel is administered through a dual control requiring the 
application of a fuel key (unique to each vehicle) and the vehicles odometer reading. A tolerance is currently permissible in respect of the odometer 
reading, of 999 miles enabling a substantial variance and potential impact on the vehicle consumption and efficiency stats. 

Enhanced controls were further required with regard the allocation and access to approximately 100 fuel key fobs used for equipment that did not 
have an odometer and as such was not subject to the dual controls as was the case with the vehicles.  The fuel monitoring report / system does not 
provide an easy method for individual cost centres to monitor fuel drawn to highlight excessive or misuse 

Private work within the workshop  

Workshop fitters are currently permitted to undertake private work outside of their shift hours to work on vehicles belonging to friends and family. 

There is a number of significant legal, health and safety and insurance issues with regard current arrangements that place both the Council and the 
individual at risk. 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 8 of 19 

Use of spare parts from workshop stores  

Workshop stores can be accessed by the fitters out of hours. All stock requisitioned out of hours should be recorded on a sequentially numbered 
Store Issue Note and entered onto the system by the Store Manager the next working day. 

Stock takes are undertaken annually (around October) with significant variances appropriately investigated. The 2009 stock take identified a deficit of 
£2,997.79 on a stock value of £85,944.25. 

Many of the stock items contributing to the deficit include generic items that could be used in any vehicle i.e. oil, anti freeze, bulbs etc.  There is a risk 
that weaknesses in stock control and security may contribute to the identified shortfalls. 

Management actions and update since last report: 

Odometer tolerance levels have been reduced to a more appropriate level 

Administrative procedures put in place for the return of fuel fobs 

Neighbourhood Wardens have been contacted to ensure procedures are in place to enable management of fuel uptake 

Mangers made aware of how to access the Jigsaw system to produce monthly reports on fuel uptake 

Process reviewed by which the cost of fuel is drawn and recharged 

Dates and times entered onto all job cards to enable clear management trail 

A reconciliation is now undertaken to ensure fuel issued is appropriately recharged is respect of the fob retained within the transport office 

In light of legal, health and safety and insurance risks all private work has been stopped 

Stock control s have been enhanced to ensure: 

• Spoilt issue notes are retained to provide a complete management trail 

• Issue notes are appropriately filed and retained 

• Secure arrangements have been put in place for generic items whereby stock takes identified significant variances 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 9 of 19 

High priority actions overdue: 

Contact each business area asking them to verify who holds their fuel master fobs (31/07/10). 

N.B. Business areas have been contacted, however a number of responses remain outstanding 

 

4 Internal Audit Performance 

Internal Audit has been assessed as fully compliant with the CIPFA Code of Practice by the Audit Commission in their triennial review of the 
service in 2009.   
 
Results from a survey conduct earlier this year demonstrate that management are largely satisfied with the internal audit service and its ability 
to contribute to the Council’s control environment and assist in achieving its objectives. 
 

Survey Question Response - Good, Very Good or Excellent 

How do you rate the service provided by Internal Audit 83.3% 

Survey Question Response - Yes 

The internal audit service makes an effective contribution to the Council’s 
control environment? 

89.1% 

Internal audit is of value and assists the Council in achieving its objectives? 91.5% 

 

5 Planning and Resourcing 

The Internal audit team is operating with a 12.5% shortfall (1 fte) against the current establishment.  We are currently advertising to fill this 
vacancy (closing date 13 August 010) 

 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 10 of 19 

6 Rolling work programme 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

2009/10 Audit Plan 

Annual governance statement ü ü ü ü 10/05/09 

Hampshire Camera Partnership ü ü ü ü 07/06/09 

Youth Services ü ü ü ü 28/07/09 

Supporting People ü ü ü ü 05/08/09 

Solent Sea Rescue ü ü ü ü 24/08/09 

School Catering Services ü ü ü ü 17/09/09 

School Grant funding ü ü ü ü 29/09/09 

Building Control ü ü ü ü 12/10/09 

Treasury Management ü ü ü ü 12/11/09 

Affordable Housing Development ü ü ü ü 13/11/09 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 11 of 19 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

Transport Services Income Investigation  n/a ü ü ü 14/11/09 

Council tax ü ü ü ü 17/11/09 

Debtors ü ü ü ü 20/11/09 

Housing and Council Tax Benefit administration – 09/10 ü ü ü ü 01/12/09 

NNDR ü ü ü ü 08/12/09 

CCTV ü ü ü ü 04/01/10 

Compliance with Health and Safety Legislation ü ü ü ü 07/01/10 

Workforce Strategy ü ü ü ü 07/01/10 

Woodlands Community School ü ü ü ü 31/01/10 

Integrated Transport and the Local Transport Strategy ü ü ü ü 08/02/10 

Accommodation Strategy and Flexible Working ü ü ü ü 08/02/10 

Procurement ü ü ü ü 08/02/10 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 12 of 19 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

Land and property management ü ü ü ü 25/02/10 

Highways Network Management ü ü ü ü 25/02/10 

Adult and Learning Disability ü ü ü ü 25/02/10 

Main Accounting System ü ü ü ü 26/02/10 

Payroll ü ü ü ü 23/03/10 

Creditors ü ü ü ü 31/03/10 

European Funding ü ü ü ü 31/03/10 

Housing rent collection and debt management ü ü ü ü 08/04/10 

Highways Resources Management ü ü ü ü 20/04/10 

Decent Homes and Estates ü ü ü ü 11/05/10 

Corporate Governance Framework ü ü ü ü 12/05/10 

Financial Management ü ü ü ü 19/05/10 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 13 of 19 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

Housing Needs ü ü ü ü 04/06/10 

Risk Management ü ü ü ü 15/06/10 

Children’s Trust arrangements for the delivery of the children’s plan ü ü ü ü 20/07/10 

Corporate Business Continuity Planning ü ü ü ü 27/07/10 

Data Management – Children Services ü ü ü ü 05/08/10 

Contract Management Follow up ü ü ü ü 09/08/10 

Network Management ü ü ü ü  

Application Software Management ü ü ü ü  

IT Solutions Development ü ü ü ü  

Fraud thematic – CRB’s/qualifications ü ü ü ü  

Commissioning Plan for Health and Wellbeing ü ü ü ü 
 

Across School thematic review ü ü ü ü  



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 14 of 19 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

Financial Management Standards in Schools 28of 28 complete  

 
 

FMSiS Analysis 

Schools 
Assessed 
(2009-10) 

Pass Conditional 

(to Pass) 

Not Achieved Comments 

28 7 20 1 Review of Holy Family Junior school FMSiS self-assessment 
(February 10) highlighted significant gaps in evidence to support 
attainment of the key standards.  A schedule of issues arising was 
subsequently provided to the school highlighting areas where it was 
deemed the Standard had not been met. 

Holy Family Junior School submitted a revised self-assessment on 18 
May 2010; this is currently being reviewed.  

 
 
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 15 of 19 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

2010/11 Audit Plan 

Annual Governance Statement ü ü ü ü 19/05/10 

Hampshire Camera Partnership ü ü ü 
ü 

24/05/10 

Abandoned Vehicles ü ü ü ü 22/06/10 

Bereavement Services ü ü ü ü 03/08/10 

Solent Sea Rescue ü ü ü ü 09/08/10 

Safeguarding – Contact Scheme ü ü ü ü 13/08/10 

Expenses Management ü ü ü ü  

General School Review – Holybrook Junior ü ü ü ü  

Sports and Recreation partnership ü ü    

Thornhill Plus You ü ü    



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 16 of 19 

Audit title Audit Progress 

T
O
R
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 

Payroll ü ü    

National Fraud Initiative n/a ü    

European Funding n/a ü    

Main Accounting System ü ü    

NNDR ü     

VAT Accounting ü     

Section 106 agreements ü     

General School review – St Marks ü     

Housing and Council Tax Benefit Administration ü     

Creditors ü     

Financial Management Standards in Schools 3 of 22 complete  

 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 17 of 19 

FMSiS Analysis 

Schools 
Assessed 
(2010-11) 

Pass Conditional 

 

Not Achieved Comments 

3  3  - 

 

7 Status of ‘Live’ External Audit 

Audit title Report 
date 

Audit Sponsor Directorate Original actions Actions outstanding 

(of which are ‘high’ priority) 

Opinion Interim Report June 08 Executive Director of Resources Resources 5 (2) 1 (1) 

Final Accounts memo Dec 08 Executive Director of Resources Resources 5 (1) 1 (0) 

Use of Resources March 09 Executive Director of Resources Resources 7 (4) 1 (1) 

 
 
 
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 18 of 19 

Page 
no. 

Recommendation Priority 
1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date Progress / Update 

Opinion Interim Report (Jun 08) 

Social Services Income 

6 Identify the cause of the failure of the 
social care billing, and implement 
changes to the system to ensure that 
this does not continue into future 
years. 

3 

 
Penny  

Furness - Smith 
Agreed Significant resources are still being 

employed to manage the current billing 
situation. A major project to develop a 
new charging policy and billing system 
to be introduced for 2009/10 is now 
underway. 

Apr-09 New charging policy has 
been introduced from 
April 2009, work is 
continuing on 
implementing an 
upgrade of Paris so that 
the system side of billing 
can be improved.  This 
is expected to happen in 
the autumn 2010. 

Final Account Memo (Dec 08) 

Registration of assets with the Land Registry 

- The registration of ownership of Land 
& Buildings with the Land Registry 
should be continued until completed. 

2 John Spiers Yes This work is undertaken by Legal 
Services who have taken on a 
temporary contract solicitor to undertake 
the work. The contract will continue as 
there is still a lot of work to do. The 
resources portfolio work is now well 
underway. 

 

 

Ongoing Ongoing 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\6\AI00002683\$beb0vfyl.doc 
Last updated 13/09/2010 

 Page 19 of 19 

Page 
no. 

Recommendation Priority 
1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date Progress / Update 

Use of Resources (Mar 09) 

Internal Control 

- Ensure that the revised non-
residential social care billing policy 
and the replacement income billing 
module are implemented. 

3 

 
Penny  

Furness - Smith 
Yes The new policy and charging module are 

in the process of being delivered per the 
specific action plan resulting from the 
PWC review. 

Dec-09 New charging policy has 
been introduced from 
April 2009, work is 
continuing on 
implementing an 
upgrade of Paris so that 
the system side of billing 
can be improved.  This 
is expected to happen in 
the autumn 2010. 

 



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	3 Minutes Of The Previous Meeting (Including Matters Arising)
	5 Audit Commission: Audit and Inspection Plan Progress Report
	Appendix 1

	6 Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Triennial Review of Self Insurance Fund
	Appendix 1

	8 Audit Commission: Annual Governance Report 2009/10
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	10 Internal Audit: Status of Work August 2010
	Appendix 1


